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Chairman’s Statement -

ETEHRE

| am pleased to present the 2009/10
annual results of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group” or “Neway Group”).

RAMRAREFEEEZERERER
al ([ARA7]) REKEB AR (5E
RINEEINHFEEE]) T
NE_Z—ZTFELEFEXRE-

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie &5 B
Chairman F &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (“This Year” or in “2010"), the Group managed to turn around its business
compared to the year ended 31 March 2009 (“Last Year” or in “2009"). Turnover recorded approximately
HK$569.0 million (2009: HK$691.5 million) with gross profit reached approximately HK$127.7 million (2009:
HK$123.5 million). Effective cost control measures brought the Group’s gross profit margin from 18% Last Year to
22% during the year. Net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders amounted to approximately HK$60.2
million (2009: a loss of HK$17.9 million).
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The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.08 cent per share for the financial year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: Nil), subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

2010 was a remarkable year for the Group. Apart from strengthening
and turning around our printing business, we also extended our
scope to include music and entertainment businesses. On 16 June
2009, the Group acquired the music and entertainment business at
a consideration of HK$65 million. This new business arm is engaged
in music and entertainment related productions and services include
artistes management, production and/or distribution of music albums,
etc.

Upon completion of the acquisition, we commenced our groundwork
on the new business in no time. With the initial nine months of
operations, we are glad to see the new business has entered its
seeding stage and we are confident to move on with foreseeable
returns coming ahead.
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Chairma?'s Statement
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To precisely reflect'our dedication on the new horizon, the Company
changed its name to Neway Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited) on 23 July 2009. Leveraging
on the well-known “Neway” brand in the music and entertainment
market, we believe our insightful corporate moves will bring the
Group to the new height in the near future.

Looking forward, we will keep our eyes on China market, the rising
printing demand in China is going to gradually broaden our customer
base with increasing recurrent income in the long run. Backed by the
solidified printing business with steady and strong flow of financial
resources, the Group gets set to accelerate its full engine on the
music and entertainment businesses. TV series and movies are going
to be launched nationwide in the short run, while at the same time
the Group will put possible efforts to advance its artistes’ portfolio to
extensively enhance our number of growth engines.

Our ultimate goals are to strengthen our printing arm as well as
to development the Group into one of the leading music and
entertainment giants in the country. Committed to the two-prong
growth strategy, we are confident to deliver fruitful returns to our
shareholders.

Lastly, I would like to express my deepest thanks to our talented and
hardworking employees for their contributions to our company. Their
creativity, professionalism and dedication make all the difference in
driving our success. We will continue to work hard to justify and
reward your faith in us.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
2 July 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2009-2010 was a challenging year to the Group. On one hand, the
Group devoted positive efforts to solidify the printing business, while
at the same time broadened business portfolio to engage in music
and entertainment business. Riding on the Group's experienced
printing business that gave strong revenue stream, the Group
explored new business opportunities and commenced its music and
entertainment business operations since June 2009. Over the past
nine months of operations, the new business has gone through its
preparation stage and is transiting to a strong development platform
with profit yet to come in the future.

Printing business

The economy has been quickly recovered after the financial crisis in
the end of 2008. Nevertheless, this momentum did not apply to the
printing industry, especially the overseas markets. Demand for printing
products from United States was significantly dropped in 2009.

The Group carefully examined the global environment during the year.
Backed by the strong sales team, the Group successfully diversified
its market focus on China. The revenue growth from China market
partially offset the reduced revenue from the overseas. Coupled with
the immediate cost control measures, effective inventory monitoring
and credit management, the Group managed to secure the gross
profit margin of the printing business at 22% (2009: 18%). Though
the top-line dropped 20% compared to last year, bottom-line
achieved turnaround to resume its growth momentum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Music and entertainment businesses

The music and entertainment businesses commenced operations since
June 2009, with new business scope includes artistes’ management,
production and distribution of music album with contracted artistes,
investment in films and TV programs. During the year, we have 10
contracted artistes and 2 contracted pop groups. Income contribution
from the artistes’ management was insignificant during the year given
it just underwent nine-month start-up period. While the invested films
and TV programs are yet to broadcast, and hence income is yet to
harvest ahead.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 March 2010, total revenue of the Group
recorded approximately HK$569.0 million (2009: HK$691.5 million)
with gross profit margin maintained at 22% (2009: 18%,).

Printing business

Revenue from printing business recorded 20% year-on-year decrease
to approximately HK$549.9 million during the year (2009: HK$691.5
million), which mainly attributable to the decreased market demand
in United States. However, the enhanced production efficiency, better
inventory management with lower material costs together with the
amounts of writing off of obsolete inventories reduced substantially
from approximately HK$5.7 million last year to approximately
HK$0.06 million for the year ended 31 March 2010, gross profit
margin improved 4 percentage points to 22% compared to last year.

Music and entertainment businesses

Revenue from music and entertainment businesses (includes sales
of music albums, licensed fee income and service fee income for
provision of promotion services) accounted for approximately HK$19.1
million at its initial nine-month operations, with gross profit reached
approximately HK$8.0 million and gross profit margin at 42%.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs recorded approximately HK$26.8 million for
the year ended 31 March 2010, 23% lower than that in last year
(2009: HK$35.0 million), which was consistent with the decrease
in consolidated revenue. The distribution costs as a percentage of
revenue remained at 5% (2009: 5%).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 15% to
approximately HK$69.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: HK$60.6 million). Such increase was mainly arising from the
newly acquired music and entertainment business of approximately
HK$7.2 million since June 2009.

1y ] -
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hihlsm R EE
Other gains and losses comprise the following major items: HulZ NEEBRFEATNETEIER
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) HNEEURZS (B398 ) R 58 28,925 (31,876)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZREE (380) (8,175)
Loss on redemption of convertible notes BE AR =8B 2 E51E - (1,451)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME HEREEZ
plant and equipment Wz - 53
Total et 28,545 (41,449)
During the year, due to the strengthening of the Australian dollars FR-BARBMIT (DRI BT

("AUD") against Hong Kong dollars, we recorded an unrealised
exchange gain of approximately HK$28.9 million (2009: an unrealised
exchange loss of approximately HK$31.9 million).

Besides, due to better credit management, allowance for doubtful
debts reduced substantially from approximately HK$8.2 million to
approximately HK$0.04 million for the financial years ended 31 March
2009 and 2010 respectively.
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Further, in previous year, the Group has early redeemed the
convertible notes of HK$123.0 million issued in November 2007 and
recorded a loss on redemption of convertible notes of approximately
HK$1.5 million.

FINANCE COSTS

In previous year, the Group has early redeemed the convertible notes
of HK$123.0 million issued in November 2007 and therefore recorded
an one off finance costs of approximately HK$8.3 million. Due to the
absence of the above mentioned item, the finance costs reduced by
97% to approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2010.

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded net
profit for the year of approximately HK$60.2 million (2009: loss of
HK$17.9 million) while the net profit margin was also improved to
11% (2009: —3%).

The improvement in net profit was mainly attributable to the
following factors:

(i) Improvement in gross profit margin by 4 percentage points
due mainly to the decrease in amounts of inventory written off
and lower material costs in this financial year;
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=+ —BHLEFE AR T ESS ElIE
B - Bt B E AR 497 % £ £9300,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(i) Record of ‘an unrealised exchange gain from AUD fixed
deposits of approximately HK$28.9 million in this financial year
as compared to an unrealised exchange loss from the same
deposits of approximately HK$31.9 million in the previous
corresponding financial year; and

(i) Absence of an one-off finance costs of approximately HK$8.3
million and loss on redemption of convertible notes of
approximately HK$1.5 million in this financial year.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table set out the summary of the Group's current ratio,
quick ratio and gearing ratio as at 31 March 2009 and 2010:

i

—
.
———

(i AHBREEHGSRTEHRERZ

I8 I 5 Uk 2% 4928,900,000/%8

T F—BREESRESR —TFERZ

REIRIE H 18 4931,900,000%
IR

(i) AMBRFETEHES—XERE
X X 498,300,0005% 7T & f& [B] AT 32
f& ZE 4% 2 518 %91,500,000/8 7T ©

RBEE BXAERREXRER

TR AEBR —_ZTNFR_F—
ZFE_A=t—"BHZRBLEX -ZFH
EREBEERBLRZME:

Notes 2010 2009
Hizt —g-%F —EENF
Current ratio Ve RS (i) 8.1 11.0
Quick ratio RE LR (i) 6.9 9.6
Gearing ratio (%) BEBBHLE%) (iii) 0.9 0.1
Notes: V=
(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by 0) FEL R IR ERETREEER AR
the total current liabilities at the end of the year. FEETEo
(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total (i) FHEH R IBIEE AR EERTEEY
current assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities EWB BT A EHE -
at the end of the year.
(iii) Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total bank borrowings divided (iii) BREABHRIVIBEGIRITEER ARES

by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had short term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$379.4 million (31
March 2009: HK$380.8 million) and short term bank borrowings of
approximately HK$7.1 million (31 March 2009: HK$1.1 million). The
Group maintained a strong and healthy liquidity and gearing ratio
over the years.

HAEETE LA100% 5T & -

R_E—ZTF=ZA=+—"H K&H
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RITEE#XA7,100,0008 T (ZEZ A
F£=H=+—H 1,100,000/ T ) ° A
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Since June 2009, 'the Group engaged in music and entertainment
business while we have allocated the working capital and financial
resources of approximately HK$16.4 million for the film rights,
deposits paid for TV series production and trade receivables.
Therefore, the current and quick ratios decreased slightly to 8.1 and
6.9 respectively as at 31 March 2010.

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong and PRC.
The Group continues to maintain a high level of operating cash
position, thus reflecting the strength of its operating performance.
Having considered the anticipated internally generated funds and
available banking facilities, the Group has adequate resources to meet
its future capital expenditures and working capital requirements. The
Group will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing its cash
balances and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that
the Group is well positioned to take advantage of opportunities for
the business growth.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Leverage on the strong foothold of its printing business with
sustainable and stable income and cash flow, looking ahead, the
Group will dedicate its efforts on developing music and entertainment
businesses. The Group will constantly maintain this two-prong growth
strategy, in the view to provide steady returns as well as fruitful
growth for shareholders.

Printing business

Cautious geographical strategy will be carried out in the coming year.
The Group will carefully adjust its resources post on overseas markets
while at the same time devote intelligent on China market. With
rising demand in China, coupled with supportive policies by the PRC
government, the Group is confident to expand its clientele to include
more customers in China.
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Music and entertainment business

The Group is ready to see its music and entertainment businesses
enter its development stage. The Group will strive to solidify its
industry platform and gradually advance its market presence. In the
mean time, joint projects to establish film library and TV programs
in China are planning to execute, quality films and TV series play are
expected to launch in the years to come. The Group is optimistic and
patient to broaden its profit base with this new growth engine.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s sales and purchases were principally denominated
in Renminbi, HK dollars and US dollars. As there is no significant
fluctuation of exchange rate between HK dollars and US dollars
throughout the year, the slight appreciation of the Renminbi did not
have a materially unfavourable effect on the operations of the Group.

Save for the AUD time deposits held by the Company, almost all
of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in HK
dollars, the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange
risk. Thus, during the year under review, exchange rate fluctuation
had not caused any major adverse impact on the operation or
liquidity of the Group. Accordingly, the Group did not enter any
financial derivative instruments to hedge against the foreign exchange
currency exposures in this financial year. However, the Group will
closely monitor the impact of change in value of the Renminbi on
its operation and consider appropriate hedging solutions to use, if
required. For the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Group did
not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose and did not
have any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 March 2010.

Besides, the intention of holding the time deposit in AUD was to earn
higher yield on funds held and the Group has not engaged in any
leveraged foreign exchange contracts and does not have any exposure
to equity or currency accumulators. The said deposits are still held by
the Group at the time of this result announcement.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 March 2010, capital expenditure of the Group
for property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$7.4 million (2009: HK$9.3 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had made capital commitment of
approximately HK$15.6 million (31 March 2009: HK$16.1 million) for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements. The Group did not make any
capital commitment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
authorized but not contracted for in both years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2010 (31 March 2009: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group did not pledge any bank deposits to
secure its bank borrowings (31 March 2009: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had approximately 3,000 full time
employees (31 March 2009: approximately 3,000). Total staff costs
including directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March
2010 was approximately HK$118.0 million (2009: approximately
HK$128.6 million). The remuneration schemes are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees. The reward packages of the Group’s staff are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on the staff and the Group’s
performance. Apart from salary payment, other staff benefits include
contribution to Retirement Benefit Scheme and medical insurance for
eligible employees. In-house and external training programmes are
provided as and when required.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERME

The Board of the' Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended
31 March 2010.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to Company business, and
ensuring transparency and accountability of Company operations. The
Board recognises that good corporate governance practices are vital
to maintain and promote shareholder value and investor confidence
and has adopted various measures to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance is maintained and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
("Listing Rules”) that are considered to be relevant to the Group and
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business. The Company
is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices and
to reviewing its corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure that they align with the latest development.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for certain
deviations from the code provisions which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this Report.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company'’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders. Every
director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten members, consisting of four
executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LAU Chin Hung

Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee and
Remuneration committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of Remuneration committee and
member of Audit committee)

Ms. LUl Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of Audit committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Chief Executive Officer, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Chairman. The detailed relationships among members
of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Executives” on pages 25 to 29.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

i
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EXRERME

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the operations
of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running
the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing the
Group's strategic plans and business goals. The Board considers that
the respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are
not necessary.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are uncle and
nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Although the directors are not appointed for a specific term, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years and any new director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment pursuant to the
Company's Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company's Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development to directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Board Committee Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

The Company's Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board met 5 times, two
of which were regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance of the Group. The Company
did not announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the
holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EEe (F)
Board and Board Committee Meetings (Continued) EEENEEZEESE (B)
Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) EEHELDL (&)
The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of UWTHEASEENHE T —ZTF=
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the A=+—HUIEFER 2EETEZ - FTX
year ended 31 March 2010 is set out below: ZEeNTMEEee: 2 HELE:
Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship
EEARzHERE €845 H
Audit Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
EEnA EEg ERZEE FHZEEE
Executive Directors HITES
— Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie —BRBLE 4/5 N/A N/A
(Chairman) (/) i A T A
- Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —EBEEXAE 5/5 N/A N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB#Ea%) i8R i B
— Mr. LAU Chin Hung —2EBEE 5/5 N/A N/A
38 A A3 A
— Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick -BEELE 2/2 N/A N/A
3 A i A
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
— Dr. NG Wai Kwan —REMETL 3/5 N/A N/A
38 A A3 A
— Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —RMmM EE 4/5 N/A N/A
3 A i A
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee — &ML E (ELZESE 3/5 212 212
and Remuneration committee) REMWEZEESHKE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
— Mr. TSE Tin Tai —HARFRE 2/5 N/A N/A
3 A i A
— Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of —BEEEE 172 7 1/1
Remuneration committee and member of (FWZEeF/E
Audit committee) REZZEBKE)
— Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of -BESat 112 I 1/1
Audit committee and member of (BEZE2TE
Remuneration committee) REWZEELHS)
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “"Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION

The Company has not formalized and adopted written terms on
the division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management. In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision
making in all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and
overall strategies, internal controls and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior executives.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by these senior executives and the Board has
the full support of them to discharge their responsibilities.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference which are posted
on the Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Messrs. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman), LUI Lai Ping, Cecily and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of the executive directors and have
access to professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2010.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company put to the
Board for approval.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company assets.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group. The
senior management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors,
Messrs. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman), CHENG Chi Wai and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors
(including one independent non-executive director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met twice and
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2009 and interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2009. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
the management the Group’s accounting policies and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Group and reported to the Board on material issues, if any, and
made recommendations to the Board. It has also reviewed the work
performed and fees charged by the external auditors and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010
has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 41 to 42.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the remuneration paid to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$1,210,000 and HK$140,000
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERME

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, normally attend the annual general
meeting and other relevant shareholders’ meetings to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after the
shareholders’ meeting. The detailed procedures for conducting a poll
are always explained at the commencement of the meetings.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERERTHRAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 31, was appointed as chairman of
the Company since August 2009. He has been an executive director
of the Company since July 2004 and chief executive officer since
November 2007 until 31 August 2009. Mr. SUEK obtained a master
degree in Marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2003. He has 2 years of experience in investment banking and
subsequently moved on to commercial sector and has been a director
of a private company for two years. He is responsible for monitoring
the Group's business and implementing the Group’s strategic plan
and business goals.

Mr. SUEK is son of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive and
controlling shareholder of the Company, nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai
Hong, executive director and chief executive officer of the Company,
and Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 48, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company since August 2009, he has been
the Company’s executive director since 1992. Mr. SUEK obtained
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Finance from York
University, Canada, he has more than 20 years of experience in
marketing and is responsible for overseeing offset business of the
Group.

Mr. SUEK is uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the executive director
and chairman of the Company, brother-in-law of Dr. NG Wai Yung,
Angela, senior executive of the Company; both of whom are also
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. LAU Chin Hung, aged 55, was appointed as the Company’s
executive director on in March 2007. He was awarded a Higher
Diploma (with Distinction) in Design by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(presently the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1976. He is
responsible for the overall planning and operations of the Company
and the Group. Mr. LAU had been a section head in the design
department of a listed electronics company in Hong Kong for 12
years. Before he joined the Company and its group, Mr. LAU was
an assistant to the managing director of one of the leading printing
public listed companies in Hong Kong during 2004-2006.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERERTHRAEZEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick, aged 51, is a Marketing Manager
of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, a company within
our group. Mr. CHENG joined our group in 1998 and has over 17
years’ experience in offset printing with specialty in paper products
manufacturing industry. He holds an honors degree of Bachelor of
Computer Science from University of Manitoba, Canada.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 60, was appointed as the Company’s
non-executive director in March 2007. Dr. NG holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in U.K. Dr. NG
has over 20 years’ experience in procurement, logistic planning and
leadership development.

Dr. NG is uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and
chairman of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. CHAN
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 27 years of experience in finance and
management in several multinational corporations.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 54, is a non-executive director of the
Company, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since December 1994 until August 2009. Mr.
WONG was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
in August 2009. He is now a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
over 20 years’ experience in telecommunication products business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERERTHRAEZEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from York University, Canada and has
over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing field in information
technology related companies.

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai, aged 45, holds an EMBA degree and a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. CHENG has
more than 20 years’ experience in auditing, financial control and
corporate finance. Mr. CHENG previously worked in an international
accounting firm and held key finance positions in several companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily, aged 44, holds a master degree of science
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration.
She is also an affiliate member of the Association of International
Accountant. Ms. LUl has more than 15 years' experience in financial
management, financial accounting, human resources management
and company secretarial field. She is at present manager of Pioneer
Industrial Components (Hong Kong) Limited, overseeing the
company'’s financial and human resources management and company
secretarial affairs.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERERTHRAEZEHE

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 47, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, in July
2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited and the human
resources manager of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited.
Mr. LAU joined the Group in 2001. He holds a master degree
in Business Administration and a master degree in Professional
Accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing in United Kingdom and has
over 16 years of experience in management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, Dr. NG has over 30 years’ experience in
label and screen process printing business. She holds a master degree
in Business Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a
Honorary doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from
Burkes University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom. Dr. NG is
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and she is responsible for
the daily management of the printing business.

Ms. NG Wai Chi, Ms. NG has over 30 years of experience in label
and silkscreen printing. She is responsible for the procurement of the
Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERERTHRAEZEHE

SENIOR EXECUTIVES (Continued)

Mr. WONG Kin Ho, Kevin, Mr. WONG obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Social Science, majoring in Journalism & Mass
Communications from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1991.
He then started his career in music entertainment industry and had
been working in various major records companies including Golden
Pony, EMI, Universal Music and Avex Asia to responsible for product
promotion and marketing. Mr. WONG has been in the industry for
19 years and has participated in managing and promoting many local
and foreign artistes and celebrities, in 2007 he was appointed the
Senior Marketing Director of Avex Asia Limited. Mr. WONG joined Star
Entertainment (Universe) Limited as from 2009 and was appointed
in 2010 as Chief Executive Officer of both Neway Star Limited and
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited, overseeing the Group’s music
productions, artiste management and show business.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas is director of our various
companies of music and entertainment division, he was human
resources manager of Neway Karaoke Box for the period from 2001
to 2007 before being appointed as an executive director. Mr. WAN
has over nine years’ experience in the related fields of management
and holds a bachelor’s degree in human resources management from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a master’s of science degree of
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

CHANGE OF COMPANY'S NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 17 July 2009, the name of
the Company was changed from Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
to Neway Group Holdings Limited and 2 &£ EZAR AR A7 has
been adopted by the Company as its new Chinese name. The change
of name became effective on 23 July 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries and associate are set
out in notes 37 and 19 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
43.

An interim dividend of HK0.08 cent per share amounting to
HK$8,154,836 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.08 cent per share for the financial year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: Nil), subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the year
at an aggregate cost of approximately HK$7.4 million in order to
increase its production capacity. Details of this and other movements
during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2010, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$415 million.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 124.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong

Mr. LAU Chin Hung

Mr. CHENG Chee Juen,
Patrick

Ms. NG Wai Chi

(Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on 1 October 2009)

(retired on 31 August 2009)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher
Mr. SUEK Che Hin

(retired on 31 August 2009)
(retired on 31 August 2009)
Dr. NG Wai Kwan (alternate director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat (redesignated as a non-executive director
from an independent non-executive
director on 31 August 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai
Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (appointed on 31 August 2009)

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (appointed on 31 August 2009)

Mr. AU Yan, Alfred (retired on 31 August 2009)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, LAU Chin Hung, CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
and WONG Sun Fat will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") of the Company. Mr. LAU Chin Hung has notified
the Company that he would like to devote more time to pursue his
other business and will retire as Director at the AGM voluntarily. Save
as Mr. LAU, the rest of the retiring directors being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 87(2). Mr.
CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in October 2009, he is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2010, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

(i) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each
of the Company
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Percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company

Name of director Capacity shares held HARRATE BT
EEHNA 54 BREZBERHE RAET DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Other interests 3,713,200,000’ 36.43
EnBtE Efih
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 800,000 0.01
REHEL EmEAA
Note: W
1. These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited 1. #ZE MM Ty ECNA Company Limited

("CNA") which in turn is beneficially owned by the CNA Trust, a
discretionary trust whose beneficiaries include Mr. SUEK Ka Lun Ernie.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions of shares in associated corporations

At 31 March 2010, CNA beneficially owned deferred non-
voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the Company:

Name of subsidiary

Name of owner
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EEzROKREERMDED
(%)

(i) MHBEZEROzZHFR

N—F-ZEFE=A=1—H CNA
BEaBEAARANIIMNBARZ
BREEELR:

Number and par value of
deferred non-voting shares

MEARERE BEAE® EBREBELR2¥E REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PAREBERAA 2 BREENET
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each
RRENR (B BR AR 100/% - H X HEE100/8 7T
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA 3,000 shares of HK$100 each
RARERI B R AR 3,000% - F X E{E100/8 7T
Profit Link Investment Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
FARREEREEARAA 208 BREAEIET
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited CNA 9,500 shares of HK$100 each

FER A ENR B R A7)

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated

corporations as at 31 March 2010.

9,5008% * MR EE 10078 7T

% FERZEIEEIRIN S 2 A
Ko BR il 8% 10 A7 & B #5 R R BT RE
37 ¢

B EXABEEN R-E-—TF=H
=B BESFARFIHEAL
KA A S EAR A AR B A B 2 ] B fn
FARRAR O B RIS R

3 3 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ B HFR AT / Annual Report 2010 F ik /



Directors’ Report

EEERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than the directors of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

- ' Tt gL WA e
-
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TERR

R-_ZE-—TE=A=+—8 FERHE
AR BR R 5 R A 15 0 33615
FEZEERRAMPACE LIRE
BH RS GG EXVIE2R35 AR
MARRREBHERGMERDEZ
ARABH RARBRNESRAA (K

Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and NEIZEBZBRIN BT -
Futures Ordinance were as follows:
Long Positions HaE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Number of  of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held HERLTE BT
BRRER 514 FEsReHE BAT DL
CNA Beneficial owner 3,713,200,0007 36.43
EREAA
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher Founder of trust 3,987,200,0007 39.11
BB GHE L Bl -/ VUN
Dr. NG Wai Yung By attribution 3,987,200,000° 39.11
REAEHL JE 15 #E 2
Trustcorp Limited Trustee 4,095,600,0007 40.18
ZFEA
Newcorp Ltd. Held by controlled corporation 4,095,600,000 40.18
BRZEGEERB
Notes: Haz -
1. CNA is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust. 1. CNAER — B RETERHE -
2. Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares are beneficially owned by 2 Rz SR, F - 3,713,200,0000% FHCNA

CNA which in turn is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who is also one of the beneficiaries;
274,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,

Christopher.
3. Spouse of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder.
4. Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares duplicate with those held

by CNA and 274,000,000 shares duplicate with those held by Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher (note 1 above); 108,400,000 shares are
beneficially owned by another SUEK family members.

BEmER  MCNAR —HEEAE TR
WHESTZAZ 22 EETERER
274,000,000k HEE BB T E R ER o

3. TERREEGE L ZRE-

4. R ER A H » 3,713,200,0000% 48 FH CNA
BB 2 R —#%m - 274,000,0000% 15 i
EOBEAE T RA 2R — R (£
1) : 108,400,000/ 1 55 — ZEE N R I&AL B
BExHE-
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Directors including the non-executive directors
have considered the following continuing connected transactions:

Exempt continuing connected transactions
1. Sharing of office

Neway Entertainment Group entered into a licence agreement
with Neway Karaoke Box pursuant to which Neway Karaoke
Box agreed to grant a license to Neway Entertainment
Group to occupy and use certain areas at 15th Floor, Park-In
Commercial Centre, 56 Dundas Street, Mongkok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong ("Office”) at a license fee of HK$30,000 per
month for a term commencing 16 June 2009 and ending on
31 March 2012.

Neway Entertainment Group is currently occupying the Office
as its head office. The license fee was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties having regard to the
prevailing market rates of similar commercial properties in the
same vicinity.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Exempt continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Sharing of office (Continued)

Neway Karaoke Box is a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Provision of staff quarter

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, a directly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into a tenancy
agreement with Neway Power Limited in renting a residential
premises at Double Haven, 52 Ma Lok Path, Shatin, New
Territories as staff quarter at a monthly rental of HK$70,000
commencing 1 December 2009 for a two years term. Neway
Power Limited is a company, of which Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
is one of the beneficial owners.

Sale of Goods

During the year, Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
sold certain goods to a related company of which Dr. SUEK
Chai Kit, Christopher is one of the ultimate beneficial owners.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Since each of the respective
transactions is less than HK$1,000,000, they are exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions —
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content

Neway Entertainment Group provides the promotion services to, and
distributing licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by, Neway Karaoke Box Group. Such
transactions constitute continuing connected transaction for the
Company. A Master Agreement has been concluded with Neway
Karaoke Box to regulate the provision of the promotion services and
the distribution of licensed content.

BFEBRERS (&)

ERERHERERS (H)
1. REWLIZE (&)
Neway Karaoke Box&—EH AR

AEERREEEELIREEZE
RS IANCIE

2. BEHRETFEZ

ARRzEBZENBARIF KR
ENfm (R EY) A BR A &l BEENeway
Power Limiteds] 2 & 1% - 1
AL #T 7D B B 2185255 65 B3
W2 EEMHEREEIRS ' A
70,0008 BTN F+Z
H— B AHM S - Neway Power
Limited® — A REZB T EER
Eh—ZEREAAZRT

3. #HEHEMm@

FA-RARER (FE)BERAQF
mM—HKBEEARHESETEM:
MEBERELRABERR &
REDBEBEAZ

PR ZEKARRR 2 FHERE
RS -HARBEXGHIREELR
1,000,000/% 7T * B AR & T R
AIE4AAEER R BTRR  RE
NS IRERALE 2 HTE -

FRRSERERS - REERRE
Ra#HEFAITERE

Neway Entertainment%s [& [ Neway
Karaoke Boxfs [ 4E fH # & AR 7 - 3 LA
RHOKZF LK HRAMAELE 2R
WOKFIEDHAF A ZTLAND - ZER
SERARRZEBEEEL S - —HE
Neway Karaoke Boxz] i 2 £ 1# % B 12

HEBREEDHEFAITEND -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Parties

(A) Neway Entertainment (for itself and on behalf of other
members of Neway Entertainment Group); and

(B) Neway Karaoke Box (for itself and on behalf of other members
of Neway Karaoke Box Group). Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly
wholly-owned by a discretionary trust for the benefits of
members of SUEK Family, and therefore, a connected person
of the Company.

Term

Commencing on 16 June 2009 and ending on 31 March 2012.

Promotion services

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group to
provide promotion services (which may include interviews by media,
TV commercials, photo shooting, performance at public functions) to
be performed by the artistes managed from time to time by Neway
Entertainment Group on terms to be mutually agreed on a case by
case basis, such terms not being more favourable as those provided by
Neway Entertainment Group to independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a service fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on commercial negotiation making reference to the type of promotion
services to be provided, the working hours, skills and popularity
required of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment
of the service fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note
issued by Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Distribution of licensed content

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group
to distribute licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by Neway Karaoke Box Group on terms
to be mutually agreed on a case by case basis, such terms not being
more favourable as those provided by Neway Entertainment Group to
independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a license fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on the number of karaoke music videos and the popularity required
of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment of the
licence fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note issued by
Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

During the year, the service fee for provision of promotion
services and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed content
charged by Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box
Group are HK$8,010,000 and HK$2,465,576 respectively totally
HK$10,475,576.

The annual caps of the service fee payable by Neway Karaoke Box
Group for the provision of the promotion services and the licensed fee
for distribution of licensed content are set out as follows:

For the period from 26 June 2009 to
31 March 2010 HK$14,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HK$17,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HK$17,000,000

The cap amounts are determined by reference to, among other things,
historical figures of the services fees and licensed fee charged by
Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group and the
projected development and promotion plan of Neway Entertainment
Group and Neway Karaoke Box Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Distribution of licensed content (Continued)

An announcement (the “Announcement”) was published on 16 June
2009 regarding this non-exempt continuing connected transaction in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive
directors (except Mr. AU Yan, Alfred on the non-exempt continuing
connected transaction abovementioned) have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (i) on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported its factual
findings to the Board of Directors that the continuing connected
transactions (i) have received the approval of the Board of the
Company; (i) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company; (iii) have been entered in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing the transaction; and (iv) have
not exceeded the cap amount for the year ended 31 March 2010 as
set out in the Announcement.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company applied
the principles of and complied with all the code provisions of, the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for certain deviations. Details of
the corporate governance practices are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 14 to 24.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest supplier accounted for 9% of total purchases
while the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 19% of total
purchases during the year.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
were less than 30% of total turnover.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during
the year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 July 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY ZEMBE

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS

CHUNG TAI PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RS

An audit involves ‘performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
2 July 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income -

meEEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRSA=+—AUFE

2010 2009
—E-%F “ETNF
NOTES HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Revenue W &= 7 569,015,711 691,495,009
Cost of sales SHE A (441,272,973) (567,992,902)
Gross profit E A 127,742,738 123,502,107
Interest income A B WA 3,678,444 6,734,535
Other income Ea A 898,043 329,072
Distribution costs SN (26,782,080) (34,993,544)
Administrative expenses THRAX (69,829,249) (60,647,862)
Other gains and losses H bz M B 1B 8 28,545,031 (41,448,897)
Finance costs B & R AN 9 (294,741) (8,586,334)
Share of loss of an associate JE (5 — KBt
NAEE (791,791) (904,686)
Profit (loss) before taxation B A A (E1E) 63,166,395 (16,015,609)
Taxation 18 12 (2,953,390) (1,919,997)
Profit (loss) for the year RNEwEHN (EE) 13 60,213,005 (17,935,606)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUWA
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETGFT
translation of foreign operations EECERZER 2,155,913 5,662,479
Total comprehensive income REZHEKAEE
for the year 62,368,918 (12,273,127)
Earnings (loss) per share FRAN (EE)
Basic and diluted HAR K #5E 15 0.59 HK cents &1l (0.18) HK cents 7l

43 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



sk
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ==
= A LN
e MR R R TR
At 31 March 2010
R-FE—ZFEFZH=4+—H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
NOTES HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R&E 6 188,033,945 212,145,546
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERIE 17 3,074,295 3,162,905
Deposits for land use rights THEAERT S 18 39,352,217 33,793,575
Investment in an associate R—FKEERAZ
& 19 16,932,923 17,724,714
Goodwill EES 20 36,025,324 =
Intangible assets BILEE 21 12,786,334 =
296,205,038 266,826,740
Current assets MENEE
Inventories "E 22 92,878,521 72,025,090
Film rights 52 b hiR e 6,151,674 =
Trade and other receivables, B 5 Kk E AU
prepayments and deposits FIE - AN RIE R
e 23 110,611,056 95,942,792
Prepaid lease payments AT E IR 17 88,610 88,610
Amount due from a related company JEU—KREFE R F]
A 24 10,592,709 1,362,753
Tax recoverable GRS 4B b 379,198 =
Short-term bank deposits 5 HEIERITIE K 25 293,790,819 264,234,274
Cash and cash equivalent RekBeEE 25 85,569,068 116,521,075
600,061,655 550,174,594
Current liabilities nEBaE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 K H h fE < 508
X FEET IR 26 61,847,808 47,343,116
Tax liabilities MIBEE 4,712,870 1,243,331
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 7,092,802 1,092,530
73,653,480 49,678,977
Net current assets mEEEFE 526,408,175 500,495,617
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAGE 822,613,213 767,322,357
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position —
e BB RRERR

At 31 March 2010
R-F—FFHEH=1—H

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

NOTES HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT

Non-current liability e Ih=VE
Deferred taxation IR AEFR IR 28 13,908,423 12,831,649

Net assets BEFE 808,704,790 754,490,708

Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital [ 29 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves fEfE 757,737,062 703,522,980

Total equity 0 B G 808,704,790 754,490,708

The financial statements on pages 43 to 123 were approved and BNFA3EERI123E 2B HRERER
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 July 2010 and are EEER T STF LA HHLERRK
signed on its behalf by: BT YHATEERRES:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie &% B SUEK Chai Hong B E
Chairman % /& Director &%

4 5 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



:“‘t‘.._,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity —
GeERRSER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AULFE

Deemed
contribution  Convertible Capital
Share Share  Put option froma notes equity redemption  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve  shareholder reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RE-% TRREE EARE
& ROEE RLHERE RR2ER EHRE e EXRE REER &zt
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT B BT B BT B
At 1 April 2008 RZEZ\EWA—-H 50,967,728 210,949,953 - - 17,110,000 62,400 32,494,097 467,541,485 779,125,663
Other comprehensive income AEEMRERA
for the year - - - - - - 5,662,479 - 5,662,479
Loss for the year RERE - - - - - - (17,935606)  (17,935,606)
Total comprehensive income AERERAEE
for the year - - - - - 5662479  (17,935606) (12,273,127)
Early redemption of REBETERER
convertible notes - - - - (17,110,000) - - 17,110,000 -
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - = - (12,361,828 (12,361,828)
At 31 March 2009 RZEENE=A=1-H 50,967,728 210,949,953 = = = 62,400 38,156,576 454,354,051 754,490,708
Other comprehensive income REEMPERA
for the year - - - - - - 2,155,913 - 2,155,913
Profit for the year KEHH - - - - - - - 60,213,005 60,213,005
Total comprehensive income AERERAER
for the year - - - - - - 2,155913 60,213,005 62,368,918
Avrising from acquisition of W B A B PR A
subsidiaries (Note 30) (Hiit30) - - (19561,456) 19,561,456 - - - - -
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - - - (8,154,836)  (8,154,836)
At 31 March 2010 W-B-ZEZA=+-8 50967728 210949953  (19,561,456) 19,561,456 - 62400 40312489 506412220 808,704,790
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows e
FEeRERERRK
For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE—F— B A=+ —HILFE
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —ETNF
Note HK$ HK$
Bz BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS ETE
Profit (loss) before taxation BR#EA & A (E548) 63,166,395 (16,015,609)
Adjustments for: BEH T 5%
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIEIREHE 380,060 8,174,885
Reversal of allowance for bad debts B Om AR B G (55,147) (261,232)
Share of loss of an associate JEAG — KBt & R A
B8 791,791 904,686
Write-down of inventories WoREFEE 56,160 5,684,000
Depreciation of property, e Y&
plant and equipment e 32,272,297 33,464,326
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 2 HH 1,723,546 =
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEERIELZ
BiH 88,610 88,610
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - WE&
and equipment 2 W - (53,422)
Loss on redemption of BRIBMERER
convertible notes &8 = 1,451,449
Interest expense B 294,741 8,586,334
Interest income FEWA (3,678,444) (6,734,535)
Operating cash flows before RetEBEE BRI
movements in working capital IIRER G RE 95,040,009 35,289,492
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (Em) R (20,002,722) 33,818,628
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 & HE b U R
other receivables, prepayments 15 ENFRIER
and deposits 1 ()L (6,883,697) 118,517,562
Increase in amount due from JEW —KBEERA]
a related company FRIEHE N (9,229,956) (1,163,908)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B RkEMERNK
other payables and accruals N & 5t FRIE G 7]1]
CRid) 11,313,419 (42,882,443)
Cash generated from operations REXEBMEAZ
HEe 70,237,053 143,579,301
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEFE/R (1,094,470) (3,613,888)
Overseas tax paid 28N IR (935,624) (612,075)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHBEST
ACTIVITIES SRR 68,206,959 139,353,338
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE BB A A 30 (58,973,980) =
Acquisition of an associate g B — SR B 2 A |) = (18,629,400)
Deposit paid for acquisition of land EWE LI ET S (5,558,642) (2,278,423)
(Increase) decrease in short term REHASRIT A (32 00)
bank deposits DA (29,556,545) 36,958,869
Purchase of property, BADZE BE&
plant and equipment B (7,406,355) (9,281,388)
Proceeds from disposal of property, k== % E ﬁ)% 54
plant and equipment R PTEIE - 53,422
Interest received = W AIES 3,678,444 6,734,535
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERERE
For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F - SESA=1—ALFE

2010 2009
—E-2% “TTAF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NET CASH (USED IN) RAES) (FTHE)
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES TSR & /558 (97,817,078) 13,557,615
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB .
Repayment of bank import loans 1;%?1%@&?])\ O &§® (6,854,810) (31,336,104)
New bank import loans raised FILIRITALOER 12,855,082 26,383,899
Dividends paid BT S (8,154,836) (12,361,828)
Interest paid EHE (294,741) (307,783)
Repayment of convertible notes BEA R EIE = (132,720,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RELBARRAS
ACTIVITIES FEE (2,449,305) (150,341,816)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH Ao RkBwFEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R A ) 18 hnF R (32,059,424) 2,569,137
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS E@Zfﬁfﬁ)&ﬁ(ﬁ
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR £E 116,521,075 112,560,495
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE R B &
RATE CHANGES 1,107,417 1,391,443
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRBEE R
AT END OF THE YEAR HeEE 85,569,068 116,521,075
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HekReEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IR Z DT
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRE 85,569,068 116,521,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R A

For the year ended 31 March 2010

BE T FTFESA=F+—HIFFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate holding
company is Newcorp Ltd., a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). Its immediate holding company
is CNA Company Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in Corporate
Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 37 and 19 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

CHANGE OF COMPANY'S NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
at a special general meeting of the Company held on 17 July
2009, the name of the Company was changed from Chung
Tai Printing Holdings Limited to Neway Group Holdings
Limited and F 2 & E#ZERBR AT has been adopted by
the Company as its new Chinese name. The change of name
became effective on 23 July 2009.

—Flﬁﬁﬁlﬂ
$ REREFMR LA K
%Zﬁﬁﬁ Al HRNEFRE
Sﬁéx%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Al LT A&
PERE A 8] ANewcorp Ltd. (—FK R
EEBERHES ([RBERES])
Al ZIz AR BEEERA
7] A& CNA Company Limited ( —
REBREXBHSHFMK I A
Al) ARBFEMRERENERE
EHE 2R FRR 2 ARE
B ER -

ARABB—FIKEERAR - £
BRAEIEHMERAZTEELR
EMFE D RIS R E37%19 -

REPBHERUBT (BT AR
ﬁﬁ MAETLTTASARRRZEAE

o

* 8

ERQAEE

BERRNR_ZTNFLATLHE
AZARRARRFIAG LRBZ
FERIRZRZE AR Al 2B BAEChung
Tai Printing Holdings Limited® 24 &
Neway Group Holdings Limited * ifj /1
ESEERERDREEARR AFEH
BENPRNETE FREHENZ
NEELA-+=B4%%-

49 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AULFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) — INT 9 &

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — INT 13

HK(FRIC) — INT 15

HK(FRIC) — INT 16

HK(FRIC) — INT 18

Presentation of financial
statements

Borrowing costs

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation

Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or associate

Vesting conditions and
cancellations

Improving disclosures about
financial instruments

Operating segments

Embedded derivatives

Customer loyalty programmes
Agreements for the construction of
real estate

Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation

Transfers of assets from customers

FERHIREET 2ER
MBHREERN ([BEMHK

HEEA])

RAFE AEEERATIH
BEGMAE ([FEGMQ
=) M 2 # T RGBT ER
BT 2R ([#] MR B
M EmELER])

BB ERE 1%
(ZZZT+F
BEE)

BB ERF23%
(ZZTtF
"IERT)

BB R ERFE32%
EILAC D)

BEH RS ER
BIRREEG
HERZE275
({57])

BB RS %A
F2% (B3])

)

&
2

Al
BEMBRE LR
&

EVEACH)
BB REER
E85R
& (BB HBHRE
#ZEZE9)
—REFEK
BB ertEd
£395% (B3])
5 (BB SBHE
#ZEZE9)
~REE13%
5 (HR S BHE
ZEZER)
—REZ15%
5 (BB SBHE
#ZEZE9)
~REZ16%
5 (HR S BHE
ZEZER)

—ZEF18%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements | -

e M R A

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRSA=+—AUFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 that
is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July
2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80 of
HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the consolidated financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the
consolidated financial statements.

FERFHEI RGBT 2B B
MBEREER ([BEBHB
WEER]) (&)
EERBREELN I N\ERAZE
(f3T) BHBREENZ
W R TR
£+ A—BHUE
Rz FE R4
M2 BEHBRS
E | ZE55 2 55T
BR AN
ERMBRSEL —EENERAEEH
(f&3T) BB S ERE39
$ES0B 2 B3R 2
BBHBEREEA
2ot

R N ESN - SRAFTR] RAEIERT R
M BHREE TS HARER
Rl B E &t I 2 4R 6 B 15
RERERTE -

ERASTERNEIE (ZE2 L
FRIERT) [BHRBERZ27
BB ERFE1H (ZEE+F
LIERT)SIAZIEERAAE B
EBUR A MTBRER 212 B
HREVBRRIEARANDTHIER

5 1 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



.- v

* 0

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AULFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see note 7)
and changes in the basis of measurement of segment profit or
loss, segment assets and segment liabilities.

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing costs

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs
that were directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset when they were incurred.
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option previously
available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The
adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group
changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing
costs as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The Group
has applied the revised accounting policy to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement
date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April 2009 in accordance
with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007).
The revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively
from 1 April 2009 and does not have a material effect on the
reported results and financial position of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

3.

ERHIREET 2ER
MBEREERN ([BEMHK
BEZE[]) (&)

BREMBRELEAFN [KLE
pag W

T S EE L E Ut
8 SEASH A AEE 28
SHE (M) - BRSO A
LR AP EERHFEABE
CESTS

BREENFE23R (=2
T FEBET) [BERAK]

RBEFE  AKERELREE -
RERLEREREEZHBE
EEEEERAR KA BEEX
AXH - BB GRTERE235% (=
TTREFRIER]) FRAERESL
ARMERERATH ERE-
RMBBGTEYF23HR(=F
TLEREBR]) ERAKE AR
SERTBR BAAZEEERA
BESEREERAZ—®D-
AEBECDRRBRE B S ELE23
B (ZTTEFEEBE) BRK
XoMR-ZETNFHA—HKZ
BRHBBRBEAZEEREERE
EXAEREET 2 BR-
RETEHTBRREE_ZENF
A —BERERR  mERBRE
BRE B T & WAREER KB
EEtHR | EXE LT HR
MERERTE -

5 2 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 &£ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



E. & E=—

54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R A

For the year ended 31 March 2010
Br T FF=HA="1—HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14

(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) — INT 17

HK(FRIC) — INT 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs 2008 '

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 2
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 3
Related party disclosures ’
Consolidated and separate
financial statements '
Classification of rights issues °
Eligible hedged items !
Additional exemptions for first-
time adopters *
Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7 disclosures

for first-time adopters ©

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions *

Business combinations '

Financial instruments &

Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement ’

Distributions of non-cash assets to

owners '

Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments ©

BRI REET 2B
MBmEER ([FEHE
wELEA]) (&)

7K £ 83 4 32 2 78 F3 T 51 A4
{814 o A 32 38T AR A5 5T 8

IR CEIEFES -

BRMBEREER
H?nT)

BB BEREER
(1£31)

BB EREEL
(#£3])

BB G ERB245
(#{E3T)

B G EREH
(#Z1&3T)

BB G ERE2R
(#£3])

BB ERE395
€ H))

BB BEREER
F1% (1B3])
BB BEREEL
F157 (&3

o

EERBRSEL
F25 (B3])

BB B#REER
E35% (LIE7T)

%/%E]ﬁ%#&mfuw
E9%%

5 (BB S BHE
ZEZE9)
—REE14%
(f&3])

B (HR S BHRE
ZEZE®)
—REZ17%

5 (BB SBHE
#ZEZE9)
~REE19%
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

EE_

3.
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BEC A=t AULEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 April 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Group's
ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

3.

FERHIREET 2ER
MBHREERN ([BEMHK
BEZEA]) (&)

l F:%%ﬂitﬂfﬁﬁiz&ﬁﬁﬁé

F— A= R () T2 B
2EEBEER B
P RCF-FFLA-ARST—

F—A—B (f4Em) Rz &k
2 FEHAR R

: R-Z—ZF—A— Bk &R
2 FEHRMER

J R-Z—ZTF-A—BR KM
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; R-F—FFLA—BRZ KM
2 F R R

’ R-Z——F—A— B2 &M
2 FEHRMER

: R-T—=F—A—BR2 K&K
2 FEHR R

J& A& B B 105 i 5 AR R SB35 (4%

EFT) e EXREBUE R B
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275 (KREF KEFEAEE

RIBAR A EESEE
BT

ARmEETAHEREMIET &
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRSA=+—AUFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

4.

TESFBE

REMBHRRIVIBELRAERE
B HBRTXAH 2 HK
o

RAEMBWMRIIRBE LS ED
NERMH2BEMBRE LR
o ftih HEFBERRHEETE
BaXZMBRARBER LR
Al R BB R BHRBIFTARE < 8
REZR-

REREEE

REMBRREBEARR KEE
2B (KRB LAR) ZH R
ReBARR AR —EERE
R SRR U E RS F
A s by - BIERAS EL A2 Il

FAKRBIHEZMBRARZE
mEoREREERRENEES
EAMA L (HER)FFAKER
E U ER R A

MR Rz MR T HRIE
AR UEESHBEREAREE
IRz 8t R —K e

AEBAZARRMBRS  EH%
MR R AR B R H8H o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AUFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of albums are recognised when the albums are delivered
and the title has passed.

Artistes management fee income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Promotion income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Income from the licensing of the musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established.

Income from the licensing of distribution rights over films is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such payments
has been established when the notice of delivery is served to
the customers.

Deposits received from purchases prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments of land under operating lease are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Film rights

Film rights include the unamortised cost of completed
theatrical films and rights of the films acquired or licensed
from outsiders for exhibition and other exploitation.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film rights (Continued)

Amortisation is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income based on the proportion of actual
income earned during the year to the total estimated income
from the sale of film rights. The total estimated income is
reviewed on a regular basis.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In
addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April
2009, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
under the finance costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating
leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount due
from a related company, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

TESFBE (&)

@I HE (&)

THEE
AEBEseMEEDERERK
EWHIE - AERAXEBEZMA
ﬁﬁ-ﬂé?ﬂ&ﬁ&%ﬁ%’%ﬁﬁwi
RILTER - UERAFREBEREK
Eﬁﬁm%$zﬁ%%ﬁWL%

HEZHERARNEEZERME
EEE-

B F0%

ERNEEZRREBERERER
EeRMEEHHEKARDRFE
WAZTE BEREAMEERNE V‘ﬂl
BEEFTFH (HER)RE
KT BB TUCR 2 (BIEH
REBRMNE—FH 2B E MK
EWER KSR KR E AR EK
&) EITEEZEERNYIRTE
REFZEREFEZAER -FEEIA
ZWALRE R F R EER

E R EW IR

ERREWGIBEAEEEKAE
FERE -BYEEFTREMS R
BZITESRMEE - RWYHRTER
% Bk EKFIE (81 TTE%ZQ
ﬁ@f% KIE - BRI —REE QR
RIB - EEHRTERRBRITEST)
T FB B MR ) 3R A 4 8 5H A AN R A
e HARERE (FRTXEH
CREEREBEZSTER) K-

6 6 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ B HFR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R A

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AUFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited

The settlement of put option which is made by receiving a
fixed amount of cash and delivering a fixed number of the
shares of Neway Entertainment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, is accounted for as an equity instrument. The option
is measured at fair value on initial recognition and debited to
put option reserve.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2010, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$95,620,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$7,644,000) (2009: carrying amount
of approximately HK$92,162,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$11,966,000). Included
in the Group's trade receivables are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,217,000 (2009:
HK$3,197,000) which are past due but not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality of trade receivable and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
allocating to cash generating units (“CGUs") of the music and
entertainment business are impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the music and entertainment business
CGUs. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and intangible assets and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are approximately
HK$36,025,000 (2009: nil) and HK$12,786,000 (2009: nil)
respectively. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 20.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual values, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful lives
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates. During
the year, the Group determined that the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment should be remained constant
to that of prior years. Depreciation expense is approximately
HK$32,272,000 (2009: HK$33,464,000) for the year ended 31
March 2010.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I HE
Categories of financial instruments SRIAZER
2010 2009
—z-®%f —TThE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets TRIEE
Loans and receivables (including BERRkEWZHE (21
cash and cash equivalents) RekBEEE) 488,830,791 477,416,921
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B SH AR 68,940,610 48,435,646

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company, short-
term bank deposits, bank balances, trade and other payables
and accruals and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ©£WMIA(#&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B¥EREEEERBER
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk 45 Bl B
() Currency risk () SMEE B
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency AEBEETZRMME QR
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign i’ﬂﬁ%ﬂ\ﬁgkﬁﬁ%“ 5'1
currency risk. In addition, certain trade receivables, < ANEEERZINE
bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings R ot A AN EE B & T A
of the Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), /\E?H% Ex RTKAE
United States dollars (“USD"”), Australian dollars (BEEBEEERBZER
("AUD") and Japanese Yen (“JPY"), the currencies B BBEMNZE S R
other than the functional currency of the respective THRITHRR E%J—EH%
group entities as disclosed in notes 23, 25, 26 and 27 BERBITEE 2 RK
respectively. Approximately 30% (2009: 30%) of the 72325 26&27?)32&% ZIN
Group's sales are denominated in currencies other than SEH30% (ZTEFTNF:
the functional currency of the group entity making 30% ) SHEVEITIHE 2
the sale, whilst almost 18% (2009: 20%) of costs are Eﬁf’iZﬁﬁHf’ﬁgM%Z
denominated in currencies other than the functional E\%ﬁ'ﬁ SR #918% (—F
currency of the group entity’s functional currency. THEF: 20%)2}55221»‘1//{'%
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency BEEREREEINZEE
hedging policy. However, the management monitors REMN AEEBRYEE
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging HEINEE E1 R EER < SR T+ B
significant foreign currency exposure should the need BEESIIMNERR T8F
arise. BRBEERE PERINE
B\ o
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBIINEFHEZ ERE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities EREBEERNHREEHZ
at the reporting date are approximately as follows: FREESYIT -
Assets Liabilities
BE 8f
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z2-%Zf _TTNF CZB-BF _TTNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
usb ETT 210,191,000 199,815,000 7,093,000 1,093,000
RMB ARE 5,505,000 12,294,000 19,621,000
AUD BT 103,954,000 75,094,000 -
JPY H = = 964,000 403,000
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to currency risks at the reporting
date. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate
is increased to 15% in the current year as the exchange
rates between the Group’s foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities and the functional currencies of the
Group's entities are expected to be more volatile.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 15% (2009: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$
against relevant foreign currencies (other than USD)
and all other variables were held constant. 15%
(2009: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
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denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 15% (2009: 10%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit (2009: a decrease
in loss) for the year where HK$ strengthen 15% (2009:
10%) against foreign currencies. For a 15% (2009:
10%) weakening of HK$ against foreign currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

result for the year.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

6. E®MIEA (&)

BEEREERBEREE
(%)

mEEE (F)

()

SMNEESE ()
BREIN (B)

Impact of Impact of Impact of
JPY AUD RMB
HEzZ% BreEE AREzgE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2010 —E—EF
Increase (decrease) in REERFE M ORA)
profit for the year 144,600 (15,593,100) 1,018,350
2009 ZZTNF
Decrease (increase) in AREEZRERD ()
loss for the year 40,300 (7,509,400) 1,962,100
Interest rate risk (i) FlE 27 S

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings. The Group has not used any
derivative instruments in order to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash
flows. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The management consider that the Group's exposure
to future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances
as a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances are
not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of asset outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease
is used which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonable possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$2,867,000 (2009: loss for
the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,795,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank deposits and bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, short-term bank deposits and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk in receivables
as the exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.
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6.

FFEE A= —AUEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has undiscounted cash flows
of approximately HK$7,247,000 (2009: HK$1,102,000) on
bank borrowings payable within one year. The carrying amount

of such bank borrowings is approximately HK$7,093,000
(2009: HK$1,093,000).

Except for bank borrowings as stated above, the directors
consider that liquidity risk is limited after considering the
future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable future as
the Group has mainly non-interest bearing short-term liabilities
which are to be repaid within three months from the end of
the reporting period.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Fair values

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also turnover of the Group, represents the
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group,
less returns and allowances during the year.

Segment revenues and results

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
represented by the board of directors of the Company, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard
(HKAS 14 “Segment reporting”) required an entity to identify
two sets of segment (business and geographical), using a
risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was geographical segments by location
of customers. The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group's operating segments as compared
with the primary segments determined in accordance with
HKAS 14.

In prior years, the Group’s primary segment information was
analysed based on the location of the Group’s customers — (i)
Hong Kong, (ii) other regions in The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), (iii) United States of America, (iv) Europe and
(v) others. However, information reported to the Company’s
board of directors who are the chief operating decision makers
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance focuses more specifically on the type of business.
The Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore
as follows:

(a) sales of printing products (“Printing”); and

(b) artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies (“Music and entertainment”).
This business is newly acquired during the year, the
details of the acquisition is disclosed in note 30.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WER>EESR (&)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) THEWERESE (E)
The comparative segment information has been restated upon L DB R BRI RE B
the adoption of HKFRS 8. WEERESHRIBEY -
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results NEFIGKRESSEE D2 WEZ R
by operating segment. EBEOWWT -
Revenue Segment profit
62 PERA
For the year ended For the year ended
BETIAGLEE BETHAELEE
31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
“E2-Zf C-TTNF C-EB-Bf C—ITTNF
ERETr=0 ZEAZEr—E ZHZSr=8 ZEF=r—E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Printing 1 549,884,019 691,495,009 35,116,214 21,540,666
Music and entertainment EEJCE 19,131,692 - 877,320 =
Total @t 569,015,711 691,495,009 35,993,534 21,540,666
Interest income MBKA 3,532,455 6,500,632
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBCETE (4,492,894) (2,997,685)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) INEYE (B18) %38 28,925,091  (31,875,985)
Effective interest expense on HRREEZ
convertible notes ERMEFX - (8,278,551)
Share of loss of an associate EE—RBEABER (791,791) (904,686)
Profit (loss) before taxation BHanEs (B8) 63,166,395  (16,015,609)
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7.

;’:\5

s S BN

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WER>EESR (&)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) THKERESE (B)
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external EXFmE 2B D BEREER
customers. BINEBEF ©
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 4R B HE 7 e = P ER B[ S E4 pr it
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. NEE @B EHER - 9 EHEA
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment R SMEEE 7% ﬁ’ﬁﬂi,@/\ﬁa
without allocation of share of loss of an associate, certain FE(E—REtE N RlEE - & T F &
interest income, net foreign exchange gain (loss), unallocated WA ~SNEY S (E518 ) /F 58 - K
corporate expenses and effective interest expense on DECES H MR RRERER
convertible notes. This is the measure reported to the Group's ﬂ,%l?‘ﬂ;‘z o BRSO L RIF
management for the purpose of resource allocation and msE - tkARAAEEEREERSE 2
performance assessment. uJFETT o
Segment assets and liabilities THEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities Z]K'E BigkE s fEE D 2 EENEBE
by operating segment: ST :
As at 31 March 2010 R-E—FF=ZH=+—H
Music and
Printing entertainment Consolidated
EN il BRRIRGE =E
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT BT
Segment assets DIEEE 421,201,588 78,772,295 499,973,883
Investment in an associate R—FKBE N7 2&E 16,932,923
Other assets HihEE 379,359,887
Consolidated assets HREEE 896,266,693
Segment liabilities DERAE 81,635,262 4,884,272 86,519,534
Other liabilities Hih & f& 1,042,369
Consolidated liabilities maiaE 87,561,903
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 March 2009

7. KakasEEH (F)

THEERAE (#)
R-EEHNF=ZF=+—H

Consolidated

=Ee
HK$
BT
Printing segment assets w5 5aE E 418,521,271
Investment in an associate R—RBERNRZIKE 17,724,714
Other assets Hih&EE 380,755,349
Consolidated assets LEBE 817,001,334
Printing segment liabilities RS EaE 61,436,319
Other liabilities HivB & 1,074,307
Consolidated liabilities REBaE 62,510,626
For the purposes of monitoring segments performances and REEZRSPERELMRSBRASEE
allocating resources between segments: IR
o all assets are allocated to operating segments other o BRR—KEBEARZRE M
than investment in an associates, short term bank HRTEFIUNERESEBSSE
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. BN FTEEESDRERS
fj\*ﬁ °
AR
. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . 25 T ELth FE AN BN TE R FE ST X

than certain other payables and accruals.

Eh A B EE D RELE
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WaEkIEER (&)
(Continued)
Other segment information HioEER
For the year ended 31 March 2010 Br—FE—FFE=FJ=+—HIF
FE
Music and Segment
Printing entertainment total  Unallocated Total
Bl EE Y AFEA AR @t
HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the STENEEEY
measure of segment NREERTAL
results or segment assets: £R:
Interest income HEKA 145,985 4 145,989 3,532,455 3,678,444
Interest expenses FIEFAZ 294,741 - 294,741 = 294,741
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment  TE/5 7 & F B & 5 88,610 - 88,610 = 88,610
Depreciation of property, Nk BEREELNE
plant and equipment 32,272,297 - 32,272,297 - 32,272,297
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - 1,723,546 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
Additions to non-current assets FRHEERE 12,964,997 50,535,204 63,500,201 - 63,500,201
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts ~ RZERE/E 142,872 237,188 380,060 - 380,060
Reversal of allowance for bad debts REZERE 55,147 - 55,147 = 55,147
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WHERIEER (E)
(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) HitboBEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2009 BEr—_EZENF=FA=+—HI
FE
Printing Unallocated Total
EN Rl F i st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure st&E DA 4E5K
of segment results or segment DEEERTTAZ
assets; S
Interest income FEWA 233,903 6,500,632 6,734,535
Interest expenses FEFAX 307,783 8,278,551 8,586,334
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE A E R85
payment 88,610 - 88,610
Depreciation of property, M- BEREEITE
plant and equipment 33,464,326 - 33,464,326
Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE 9,281,388 = 9,281,388
Allowance for bad and RIZIREME
doubtful debts 8,174,885 - 8,174,885
Reversal of allowance for bad Ol =R
debts 261,232 - 261,232
Revenue from major products and services REFEEMRERE 2K

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

AT RARBREEETREMK

major products and services: AR 75 2 Wz 9 4T
2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing products EN Il 2 dh 549,884,019 691,495,009
Music and entertainment operation FEE IR R T 19,131,692 =
569,015,711 691,495,009
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s income from printing operation is derived from
Hong Kong and the PRC. The music and entertainment
business are mainly carried out in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and assets respectively are detailed below:

WEEkoEER (&)

i EE R

AREE R B HR E5 2 WATRR
FENTE SRNMREXBTE
REBKE -

AEEXRBEIBELZBEZRE
FAERBEECERDRER
REEZFPREMEFIINT :

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENBEE 2z kRBEE

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EZF% “ETNF —E-EF “ETNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong e 340,010,395 413,385,896 75,009,993 33,297,405
The PRC HE 138,198,957 194,178,948 221,195,045 233,529,335
Europe BOM 35,674,948 7,378,921 = =
United States 5 43,995,497 64,639,722 = =
Others Hit 11,135,914 11,911,522 = -
569,015,711 691,495,009 296,205,038 266,326,740

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
2009.

FEEFER

REBEE-_Z—ZTFER_ZTTNEF
“A=1t—"HIFE #HEE—F
FERAEEZWZRTEB10% °
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

. 43

* 0

8. HihsmkEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) HNEE Wz (18 ) /55 28,925,091 (31,875,985)
Gain on disposal of property, LEDE BWE K
plant and equipment R e - 53,422
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts — RIER# & (380,060) (8,174,885)
Loss on redemption of fE o AT AR R IR v B4R
convertible notes = (1,451,449)
28,545,031 (41,448,897)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERAK
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZThF
HK$ HK$
BT o
Interest on: ATIER ZH &
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BER—FANBHERZ
within one year RITIEE 294,741 307,783
Effective interest expense on A AR R IR B R ) B 2
convertible notes - 8,278,551
294,741 8,586,334
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 16 (2009: 13) WTARENHENTI6R(ZF

directors were as follows: ENEF 13R)EF 2

Executive directors Non-executive directors Alternate directors
F:Jii £ FUES i 5
LAU Chin CHENG SUEK CHAN NG Wai LAV
NG SUEK SUEK Hung, Chee Juen,  ChaiKit, SUEK, KwingChoi, ~ WONG ~ AUYan,  NGWai TSE CHENG LUI Lai Yung, Kam

Wai Chi  Chai Hong KaLun Edwin Patrick Christopher ~ CheHin ~ Warren  SunFat Alfred Kwan TinTai  ChiWai Ping Angela  Cheong Total
%53 BHE #58 #R% iz 343 BiH L) it Bif RER #x% [ 3 AEH [y v #ge 4%
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
& En & En o En & En o En & #n & #n & #n &

(Noteg) (Notee) (ote ) (Note 3) (Note d) (Note b) (Note¢) Mote ¢/
) ) ) ) )
2010 %-8%
Fees Be = = = = - %5739 20833 126,000 50,000 12,500 50,000 50,000 29,167 29,167 - - 1305057
Otheremoluments &
- Salaries and other =
benefits 263250 1,007600 1471500 1,170,000 320,025 - - - - - - - - - T30 319692 5288417
- Contributions to .
refirement benefits HE
schemes 13163 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 - - - - - - - - - 15818 12,000 88,981

Total emoluments 6413 1019600 1483500 1182000 332005 957,390 2083 126000 50,000 12,500 50,000 50,000 29167 1167 752168 331692 6702455

Executive directors Non-executive directors Alternate directors
4TS FATES EES
LAU Chin SUEK CHAN NG LAU
NG SUEK SUEK Hung, Chai Kit, SUEK,  Kwing Choi, WONG AU Yan, NG Wai TSE Wai Yung, Kam
Wai Chi  Chai Hong Ka Lun Edwin  Christopher Che Hin Warren Sun Fat Alfred Kwan Tin Tai Angela Cheong Total
RE2 HEE EEB UR% HEG s R ENg B REE #xE %3 EEEE f3]
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
R BT BT BT BT BT o R B R BT B BT R
2009 “ETpE
Fees [ = = = - 238329 12,500 377,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 - - 28329
Other emoluments Afthe
- Salaries and other -HeREMER
benefits 533,250 - 526500 1,170,000 - - - - - - - 1489350 319,781 4,038,881
- Contributions to il
retirement benefits
schemes 26,662 - 12,000 12,000 - - - - - - - 32,468 12,000 95130
Total emoluments HeeE 559912 = 538500 1,182,000 2,383,290 12,500 377,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12500 1,521,818 331,781 6,957,301
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10.

F—

SR A =1 —HIFFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(9

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher and Mr. SUEK Che Hin have
retired as non-executive directors with effect from 31 August
2009.

Mr. AU Yan, Alfred has been resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 31 August
20009.

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai and Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily have been
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company with effect from 31 August 2009.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company from an independent non-executive
director with effect from 31 August 2009.

Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 October
20009.

The directors’ remuneration does not include the estimated
monetary value of a property owned by the Group and
occupied by a director of the Company. The estimated
monetary value of the residential accommodation provided
to the director for the year ended 31 March 2010 was
HK$420,000 (2009: HK$266,050).

Ms. NG Wai Chi has retired as an executive director with effect
from 31 August 2009.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in any
of the two years ended 31 March 2010.

LN

10. EEME (&)

Wit

(a)

(9)

BEER S T R AR S AR
FEF B-FEAFAA=+—
BB -

ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ&ﬁ“ﬂﬁi#ﬁﬁ%
£ H-TEAFN\AS+—Bie
e

BERLERBEFLLEZER
ARABUIFATESE A-_FF
NENA=+—BRER-

%%ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁimﬁﬂﬂﬁjiﬁﬂﬁé
EREFATEE A_TTNF
NA=+—HEEXK-

BEHERERZER/RRRBIT
% H-ZETAF+HA—HELE

Q

EEMeU T RE—BRAEEE
BIHARE]—BESERAZE
ZEAEEE-BE-T—TF=
A=+—HALFE mEZRHEE
8 &R 1 2 (& 51 & ¥ (B /420,000
T (ZZZNF 266,050 7T ) °

HREWTES B=F
FAENAS+—BREN:
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PREFE
o] A
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11.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2009: five) were directors of the Company
including two directors resigned during the year whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the

11. EEME

EXREEREZSHFALH @
Z(ZZZTNEF AB)BEARF
EX(BRMERNFARTICE
F)BEMEFBDER L

remaining individual are as follows: NoHMATZMESMT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e kEHMEF 2,228,000 =
Contributions to retirement R A ET B 5K
benefits schemes 43,150 -
2,271,150 =
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZHMeHBERLRDT :
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH BE AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 =

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the two years ended 31 March 2010 and
2009.

HE_ZT—ZFKR_FTTNF=
A=Z+—HLMEFE AEBW
ERARAIESESRAEARSFTA
TERERME  ERIMARSEE
HINERTE 2 REN KR EBAL 2 78

=
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12. TAXATION 12. BiE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation charge comprises: TIE S B HE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH
Charge for the year REZH 3,957,064 3,149,021
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEEEG (1,033,856) (711,068)
2,923,208 2,437,953
Overseas taxation BN IE
Charge for the year REZH 1,449,787 2,082,203
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREDT 1,041 1,782
1,450,828 2,083,985
Deferred tax credit (note 28) EEFR B R (H15228)
Current year RE (1,420,646) (1,711,241)
Attributable to change in tax rate BA T R E E)H Y - (890,700)
2,953,390 1,919,997
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed N-EBEENFA=Z+/H &S

the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1

January 2008 onwards.

NEEBRB _TE)N\FIANES
BR BARFEHER7.5%A
ﬁiMB%v —EENZEFT
NBEBREERER AL FEF
SR TR M B F E AT ERRR
i F3816.5% 5T & -

IHE

BIE (PEAREKMBECERNS
FEY ([ KEEMBHZE 1)K
(EEMSTFEERIGH) - B=
TENF—F—HE FEHBA
Al Z T EB25% o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRSA=+—AUFE

12. TAXATION (Continued) 12. BB (8&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FANEALATHEHGEEZEKEEZ
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of ML BEA (BE) HER 2 HIE Y
comprehensive income as follows: Han T
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit (loss) before taxation B AR N (EBE) 63,166,395 (16,015,609)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LTSI ®E16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) (ZZEZNF:16.5%)
STEZMIE 10,422,455 (2,642,575)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N AT FIFE B Sz 2 B 75 52 2
for tax purposes 633,834 2,212,148
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBIMA 2 B 2
tax purposes (2,990,285) (1,724,013)
Tax effect of the tax losses not RERRIE B2 RIS E
recognised 470,912 4,965,868
Overprovision in respect of prior years 1+ & A 5E B 5 (1,032,815) (709,286)
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEHERLE 2
subsidiaries operating in other B8 A mliR T R B &
jurisdictions ETH R 205,924 708,555
Effect of change in tax rate HEEFH & = (890,700)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FABTERERTBEEZ
previously not recognised MG E (4,756,635) =
Taxation for the year REEFIE 2,953,390 1,919,997
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13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. NEFEEEH (BE)
2010 2009
—E-EfF ZZTThF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit (loss) for the year has been STEARFE R (EE)R
arrived at after charging (crediting): Bk (5t A)
IZE=REE
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERH 1,723,546 -
Reversal of allowance for bad debts B o] AR (55,147) (261,232)
Auditor’s remuneration 2% SR B 1,330,100 1,140,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an PASZ 7 SRR
expense, including write-down of FERA (BIEHUR
inventories of HK$56,160 (2009: 17 556,160/8 7T
HK$5,684,000) (ZZEZhEF:
5,684,000/ 7T ) ) 430,124,600 567,992,902
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz BERZRETE
equipment 32,272,297 33,464,326
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 1+ 7 & 7108 # 5
payments 88,610 88,610
Rental payments in respect of premises AR & ZHE T2
under operating leases ) E s 5,083,006 5,117,064
Staff costs including directors’ BEESEMHE 2B ITKA
emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —F& LERHMEF 117,149,372 127,722,299
— Contributions to retirement — IR KB FIFT B 3K
benefits schemes 878,166 859,833
Total staff costs BEITA 118,027,538 128,582,132

9 2 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /




.
| &

54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements | -

e M R A
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. BRE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT AIT
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERBD IR ZIE
during the year:
Interim dividends paid B Hi % B — §1%0.08
— HKO0.08 cent per share B (ZETNF -
(2009: 2009 interim dividend —ZETENFHHRE
HK0.03 cent) B 1%0.03%81L) 8,154,836 3,058,064
2008 Final dividend paid ENZEZENFREARE
— HK0.091 cent per share — & 3%0.09175 1 - 9,303,764
8,154,836 12,361,828

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.08 cent per share for the financial year ended 31 March
2010 (2009: Nil), subject to the approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

BEEEZRNEBE-_Z—ZF=
A=+ —HIMBRFEE 2 RERK
BERSEMN(ZEZ NLF:
) o MR B ER A FE fE AR
RBEFRE EH#E-

BRAERN (BFE)

RERRBIHEB AEEBBRER
A (BR)BRATEEE:

2010 2009
—z-=% —TEhE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings (loss) for the purposes of ATEEREREF
basic earnings (loss) per share (E18) 2 BF (E8) 60,213,005 (17,935,606)
2010 2009
Number of shares % 10 2 H —E—-FF —ETNEF
Weighted average number of shares s E &M ERZF (E5i8)
for the purpose of basic earnings L R Eliie
(loss) per share 10,193,545,600 10,193,545,600

No separate diluted earnings per share information has
been presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for both years.

el 70 G 1 6 5 34 i 36 4 72 9 2
EEBR - ML ESSEREER
7o
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rY
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. MI¥ -BMERRKE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction land and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
Bt BoNE KA RER
ERIR kEF %8 BAERE BERRE RE By
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS
B o B BT BT BT B
CosT RAE
At 1 April 2008 R-ZE 4,839,338 111,086,385 43,191,645 32,953,458 455,321,242 10,295,822 657,687,890
Exchange adjustments EH AR 53,011 683,554 15,679 478,724 517,344 16,248 1,764,560
Additions RE 2,497,133 1,342,721 = 377,885 4,127,903 935,746 9,281,388
Disposal HE - - - - (3,730,000) (9,626) (3,739,626
At 31 March 2009 R=ZEZNE=A=1-H 7,389,482 113,112,660 43,207,324 33,810,067 456,236,489 11,238,190 664,994,212
Exchange adjustments R AE 90,055 559,086 14,236 323,113 488,164 32,212 1,506,866
Additions "B 783,585 118,041 = 1,011,489 4,286,021 1,207,219 7,406,355
Disposal HE - - - (118,539) - (690,595) (809,134)
At 31 March 2010 R=Z2-Z5=A=1-H 8,263,122 113,789,787 43,221,560 35,026,130 461,010,674 11,787,026 673,098,299
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2008 RZZZNEMA-AH = 28,815,878 35,484,880 31,752,366 316,860,683 9,388,821 422,302,628
Exchange adjustment EREE - 122,740 10833 354,328 319,811 13,626 821,338
Provided for the year FNEE = 3,280,463 461,375 737,943 28,599,867 384,678 33,464,326
Eliminated on disposal HENHE - = = = (3,730,000) (9,626) (3,739,626)
At 31 March 2009 R=ZEZNF=A=1—-H = 32,219,081 35,957,088 32,844,637 342,050,361 9,777,499 452,848,666
Exchange adjustment ERAR = 142,575 10,742 246,301 336,363 16,544 752,525
Provided for the year FREE - 3,324,462 456,037 1,446,186 26,549,629 495,983 32,272,297
Eliminated on disposal HEME - - - (118,539) - (690,595) (809,134)
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-FF=A=+-A = 35,686,118 36,423,867 34,418,585 368,936,353 9,599,431 485,064,354
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2010 R=E-ZF=fA=1-H 8,263,122 78,103,669 6,797,693 607,545 92,074,321 2,187,595 188,033,945
At 31 March 2009 R=EZAF=A=1-H 7,389,482 80,893,579 7,250,236 965,430 114,186,128 1,460,691 212,145,546
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

16.

W WERRE (H)

Lt - BB MERERE 2T E
TIERAIM T ZFMERLIRE R
HEHE

annum: HESEHE
Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease MLy LA HABR 3X
terms or 30-50 years MEF 30E504F
(A&
RLE)
Leasehold improvements 20% HAOMEERE  20%
Furniture, fixtures and office ~ 10% — 25% R KB R 10% —25%
equipment N
Machinery and equipment 10% — 25% 23 K R A 10% —25%
Motor vehicles 25% E 25%
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZTThF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The carrying values of leasehold LT REFZ
land and buildings shown above FREEBE:
comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong {2 &8 I JA 1 BEFE 47
Kong under medium-term leases BA 2L MEF 31,913,693 32,846,222
Buildings in other regions in the PRC {7 7 AR B E 4th 1b [ 7
under medium-term leases AR ERM A3 B 2 2= 46,189,976 48,047,356
78,103,669 80,893,578

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$31,913,693 (2009: HK$32,846,222) have been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

BREEA 31,913,693 T 2%
¥ BEERRKB(ZEZTNF:
32,846,222 70) B TIRTT ' 1E
BAEBEERE—REBITHREZ
B
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B

17.

18.

—E- R A= LR

— =

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ENHEERE
2010 2009
—E-EfF —ZETNF
HK$ HK$
B TT BT
The Group's prepaid lease payments  ZANEEE 2 Fa S FA
comprise: BIE
Medium-term leasehold land iz 74 AR B3 LA R HA A 49
in the PRC BA 2L 3,162,905 3,251,515
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRmAMAT
Non-current asset FEREBEE 3,074,295 3,162,905
Current asset MENEE 88,610 88,610
3,162,905 3,251,515
The leasehold land is charged to consolidated statement ML HIEEREENF A
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the HEANB G E WSRO -
remaining term of the leases.
DEPOSITS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 18. THEAET S

Deposits of approximately HK$39,352,000 (2009:
HK$33,794,000) were paid for land use rights situated in the
PRC to the local government. The completion of the purchases
are pending for receiving the land use right certificates, as
such, the amounts paid for the land use rights are recorded as
deposits at the end of the reporting period.

#939,352,000/8 L (ZEZ N4 :
33,794,000 7T ) &l £ E SRR A
BetiFERAESNTEBLS
BT o 5 B8 U BB 7B FF Y BN -t 5 R
BB SR Al A 3RE
R HERES S CRIEEA
RINBET& -
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19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

19. R—XBEQT2RE

2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an associate R—REE QA2 E KA
Unlisted JEET 18,629,400 18,629,400
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEAG B 1% B 18 R Hofh 2T
other comprehensive expenses, net X HBRE AR E
of dividends received (1,696,477) (904,686)
16,932,923 17,724,714

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group had interest in the
following associate:

NR-ZE—TER_TTHNE=A
=+—8B AEBRUTEHERT
FEA

Proportion of

nominal value
of issued
capital/
Form of Principal registered Proportion of
business Place of place of Class of capital held voting
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held by the Group power held Principal activity
AEBfE
BRITRE/
i £ it MR A i
HEEERE EBREBKA  RUBE EES R R4 &5 EEL A REBLH TEXH
EMNREEBE % Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary 30% 30% Investment holding
ARAR
([ERAFEE])
ERNBEHBER a7V FE HE E@ 30% 30% ®EERK
ARAR
([ERAFEE])

The financial year end date for ZM L& is 31 December.
For the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the consolidated financial statements of M NLHE for
the year ended 31 March 2010 have been prepared by the
directors of the Company. The sub-group headed by #& #£ 1.6
7 has not yet commenced business.

BEARNBEZHBREEEHE A
+=A=+—8- ARAEEES;
% ANREFEREUEMNAAE
HE-T-—TE=A=+—AL
FEZFAIHRE - UWEHNH
EABZ TRENKARLEY
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19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. R—REEQTZRE
(#&)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BEEANERBE AT 2 HEER
associate is set out below: BEEHHWT :
2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Total assets BEHE 59,201,334 59,941,031
Total liabilities BEAR (2,758,257) (858,651)
Net assets BEFE 56,443,077 59,082,380
Group's share of net assets of REEEE—RBEREZ
an associate BEESE 16,932,923 17,724,714
Revenue g = =
Loss for the year/period (since ANEE HEER (BHE
acquisition date of the associate) UNGID G- AR ) (2,639,303) (3,015,620)
Group's share of loss and total FAREBEMG—REE
comprehensive income of an NEIZEER
associate for the year 2HE U A B (791,791) (904,686)
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20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$
BT
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNTS BRAR REE
At 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 RZZEZNFMOA—H K
—EEAF=A=1+—H =
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W E I A Al &= & (#77#30)
(Note 30) 36,025,324
At 31 March 2010 R—E—ZEF=A=+—H 36,025,324

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible
assets set out in Note 21 have been allocated to the CGUs of
music and entertainment business. The recoverable amount
of the CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
10-year period and discount rate of 22.5%. The cash flows
beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated having a steady
2% growth rate. The growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. A key assumption for the value in
use calculation is budgeted growth rate, which is determined
based on past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. No impairment on goodwill and
intangible assets was noted. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of the assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGUs
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the above
CGUs.

RERRAMS  E21E 2
MENEREESIRETENR
IREEE TR IR G EESN - BRFIR
cEEBEMZAKESEEIRE
BEETEET -E@TEAR
NWEBEZEZHBEE BER
ERESRETEA REFH A0
FEFERE225% - 10F 8B
REeERERH AT A2%EBTEE
K- BRABREXRNBEMRBITE
BEBAREBITEZFHRER
BEXRGHE - FRHEEAECETE
BEAEEEEE MIERET)
HBERRMEBEEER 25
BRET HEMEFEEL KR
R E - BEEMRE  EAERE
REMESEAREEE) @BH il
fﬁi?i s BRI EBKEBB

MBETELEEN 2 ERKRES
%Ei"
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEEE
Artiste
contracts Trademark Total
BEAEH [ 5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
CosT R
At 1 April 2008 and RZZEZEN\FHA—H
31 March 2009 M ZZFZTNF
—A=+—8 - _ _
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT /8 2 A 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZF
=HA=+—8 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
AMORTISATION AND e RORE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2008 and NZZZENFMNAH—H
31 March 2009 M ZFZNF
—A=+—8 - _ _
Charge for the year AREELTH 1,723,546 = 1,723,546
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—ZF
=HA=+—8 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
NET BOOK VALUES BREEE
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZF
=EFH=F=F 7,468,702 5,317,632 12,786,334
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZNF
:H :+7 E _ _ _
Artiste contracts, which have definite useful lives, are #$AESHEERAEREE  ILE
amortised over the contract term (4 years) on a straight-line BRI EXFEN (45 ) B
basis.
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21.

22,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. BEEE (&)
The trademark is considered by the management of the Group ARTEE R En mEHE RIS
as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to EANERE  MAEEETIEERAD
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. Various studies ZEEAERERFE - RNEFEIE
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and [BEETZIENT  BiEERBR
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have T s R NIRIEBEBH AR
been performed by management of the Group, which supports mEER#e  EEEYER
that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over FZ A T8 B B A2 B L 2k AR 75 B] A R
which the trademarked products or services are expected to SEEAFRERAEILERE
generate net cash flows for the Group. The trademark will BHIR mEEIeEE BEE2H
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. R EEEEABRE A
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever R BREeEENREAENRZETR
there is an indication that it may be impaired. ] ge IR R E R E ST RUE R E o
Particulars of the impairment testing of artiste contracts and B}AEANREEZBERSGFERE
trademark are disclosed in note 20. AT EE203 55 o
INVENTORIES 22. &

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZETNF

HKS$ HK$

BT BT
Raw materials R 51,997,271 43,692,829
Work in progress fE&m 22,708,297 13,862,276
Finished goods RIRY oh 18,172,953 14,469,985

92,878,521 72,025,090
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EE_

23.

FFEE A= —AUEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

The Group’s credit terms on sales of printing business generally
range from 60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a
few customers with whom the Group has a good business
relationship and which are in sound financial condition.
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days to its
customers of artistes management, production and distribution
of music albums. The credit terms of the distribution of
movie are determined by project basis. An ageing analysis
of the trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

23.

ESRHEMEWFIE  FBEF
RERZES

AEBHRBEKEEZEERR
— % A60ZE90H - L H AL F
ERVEEBERAVERIELT
CEFPUZEARRZEEHRE - K
SEBAEE RUERBEITHLE
H%%%ﬁszﬁmiﬁ&%
cBYHBTZEEHNIRER A
ﬁﬁfmoa%fw E(Emh
REREE) ZBRER DT JhIRS
KZBEHHEES -

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: E il 3£ 75 -

0 — 30 days 0£30H 76,407,446 74,967,209
31 - 60 days 31260H 9,526,212 8,192,000
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,363,972 5,805,791
Over 90 days B @90 H 277,176 3,197,041
91,574,806 92,162,041

Music and entertainment operation: EEJPEEIE
0 — 45 days 0&45H 1,105,117 -
46 - 90 days 46290H 121,831 -
91 - 180 days 912180H 28,802 -
181 — 365 days 1812365H 389,587 -
Over 365 days #Bi8365H 2,399,458 =
4,044,795 -
Total trade receivables B 5 GRIE A RE 95,619,601 92,162,041

Deposits, prepayments and Ze FENRER
other receivables H b & YRR 14,991,455 3,780,751
110,611,056 95,942,792
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23.

FTEE A= —AUEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Trade receivables of approximately HK$24,094,000 (2009:
HK$19,882,000) was denominated in USD, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly. Approximately 90% (2009: 85%) of trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
quality. These customers have no default of payment in the
past and have good credit rating attributable under the credit
review procedures used by the Group, including profitability,
liquidity, financial leverage and operational performance
quality of the counterparties.

The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement
including the credit creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each client.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,217,000
(2009: HK$3,197,000), which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
of the trade receivables and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 345 days
(2009: 135 days).

23.

BZ RHEMEBKE
REREE (&)

B 424,094,000 L (ZEF
L5 119,882,000/ 7T ) 2 B 5 E
WRTRAZE T R EAL - TETTIIE
FREEERE s ERAE-

RIE - A

AEEEENTRFELA . g5
AEBERP 2 EEEE RIZE
AR FHEEEEREE  IWiE AR
MTEFPZIEERTE-490% (=
TENF : 85% ) WAREHI TR
BB RWUFEREREREE
E% uZigﬁLffl T@ﬁ(n
B WA SKEMRAEERNIEF
(BETHNF 22BN REE
T UBERELEERRE HZ)F
BERIFEETR-

R BB LR E KRB E X
R ZHEBRRERA < AT EE
& R BR i D AT A N B IR B 2 H B
(BREBERPZEEMAIBHE
BAFLER) M HIE

REBZE SHRWGIES - BIEER
B 4858 #93,217,0008 T (=&
T A 3,197,000 7T ) 2 FEU
RIE-ZERWKIERHRE B H

B H] - RS E I R R EE
B RAREBE S ERKE IEZTE
EEEUWESEAED BABEHE
AR A eI Uk El o A& B £ 5t 3%
EFRF A TR - ZE R
87 FHBREE A345H (ZZEZTh
% 1135H)
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 23.
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

BEZ R EMERRIR - M
REREE (&)
CEMERREZE S EYK

not impaired

TH 2Bk

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: ENRI €75
91 to 180 days 91%180H 277,176 3,197,041
Music and entertainment operation: BN IRBEZETE
46 — 90 days 46%290H 121,831 -
91 — 180 days 91%180H 28,802 -
181 — 365 days 181£365H 389,587 —
Over 365 days H#3E365H 2,399,458 -
Total 5T 3,216,854 3,197,041
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREET
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH 11,966,341 7,506,176
Impairment losses recognised on BEBGRIEfER 2 R E 1R
receivables 380,060 8,174,885
Reversal of bad debt EEHR O] (55,147) (261,232)
Amounts written off as uncollectible TeedEl 2 i BR 58 (4,650,135) (3,455,086)
Exchange realignment IE 5 3 & 2,556 1,598
Balance at end of the year FRE 7,643,675 11,966,341
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23.

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
(Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$5,152,000 (2009: HK$9,627,000) which
have been in severe financial difficulties in repaying the
outstanding balances. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The trade receivables past due but
not provided for were either subsequently settled as at the end
of the reporting period or no historical default of payments
was noted by the respective customers. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. The directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on
demand. Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, the beneficial owner
of the Company, is one of the ultimate beneficial owners of
the related company.

The maximum outstanding balance for the year is
HK$10,592,709 (2009: HK$1,362,753).

23.

24,

B2 RHEMBWIER BN
RERERE (&)
RIEBEz 28 (F)

AEBELOREREELERGE
BB B = B 15 R 2 2 @ 5 E
B RIWAE LHBBHA
5,152,000 T (ZEEZF L F:
9,627,000/ T ) ° A% B I £ 5t
REERITF AT MR

EETEZREFERESAKE
R AEBEZERATRRLEES
FEEREHRAME FHEFE
BREZEEEZASHRER
2P -CANEERBLBERE
WHRIBTHEERRNREHRDE
B HEEEPBELEERT
B2 FR - IR EPRBRARER
ZEETERE  QEERR 2 ET
BEAR ESHEERBIRE
Bzt BEABELBEIMEER
e

Bl —REBEQRAKE
ZESWABER 28 RARB
MEE - A AR BRSEE ALBR
B AZMERRAZERERE
BAZ—:

FAN e G /K% A510,592,709
BIL(ZEZNF:1,362,753/8
JC) °©
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24,

E—TES H=f—FFFE
AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
(Continued)

An ageing analysis of amount due from a related company
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

24,

W —XEERQ T
(#&)

ATAREREHRZEZAH
2R —KBERBRIEZ

/TA IE

reporting period. BRER D #fT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNhF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0%£30H 1,097,133 1,362,753
31 - 60 days 31260H 920,000 -
61 — 90 days 61%£90H 1,450,000 -
91 — 180 days 912 180H 3,460,000 -
Over 180 days HB4E180H 3,665,576 -
10,592,709 1,362,753
Included in the amount due from a related company with FEWG —R 88N B IEAR - BFRER

aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$9,496,000
(2009: nil), which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the amount
is subsequently settled. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
147 days (2009: nil).

Ageing of amount due from a related company

T B 4258 499, 496 oooﬁ%érc(:%E
TNF B ZEKFIE ZEE
WERIER FRE BHIE 8 A - AR S
B ERRREEE RRESEHE
JEWGRIBE BB BE - AEBEWE
MZERBERFET(ER - 25
WA 2 FH R 21478 (=5
TNFE) o

€ J81 1B 4RI {8 2 FE W — R BA

which are past due but not impaired HNTRIEZRR
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
31 - 60 days 31260H 920,000 -
— 90 days 61290H 1,450,000 -
91 - 180 days 912 180H 3,460,000 -
Over 180 days FE#E180H 3,665,576 =
Total et 9,495,576 -
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25.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$186,097,000 (2009:
HK$179,933,000), HK$103,954,000 (2009: HK$75,094,000)
and HK$5,505,000 (2009: nil) were denominated in USD, AUD
and RMB respectively, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

Further, included in the short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$42,342,000 (2009: HK$50,196,000), which
are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (2009: 1.0% to 4.5%)
per annum.

25.

BHRTERRITER
kB

RHBETER BTE8LRES
BRASEFMFRAESERFER
HA=@AKATZRITFER
B ED 71 #186,097,000/% 7T ( —
ZE A E: 179,933,000 7T )
103,954,000 T (Z T L F:
75,094,000/% 7t ) &5,505,000/%
T(ZZETNGF &) 2RITHEH
RERIRITERD BIAZETT BT
RARKASEN =& IE@ERE
EERECEREE-

o 52 ERSR 1T E FR  SRIT 4 &
MR & B IEEE R 442,342,000
BT (ZZZFNF : 50,196,000
T0) Z AR FIE - ZEFIEAT
ERAIMABEMER-

BITEBLEHRETERZFES
ENF01%E2.5% (ZTEZT A
F:1.0%E45% ) FEH B

1 O 7 / Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ BZERHR AT / Annual Report 2010 F 3k /



. e—— -

* 0

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements © -

e M R A

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-F-FRTA=+—AULFE

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. EZRHMEMRKER
ACCRUALS EtER
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented AT ARBRERRZZEQH
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. 25|78 Z EAFIBERER DT o
2010 2009
—ZE-EfF —ETNF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0%30H 34,329,771 28,590,389
31 - 60 days 31£60H 8,211,155 665,231
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,631,567 929,215
Over 90 days H3E90H 410,951 862,889
Total trade payables B RN KIBAE 44,583,444 31,047,724
Accrued expenses and other payables & & F & H 4th f& (~ ZUE 17,264,364 16,295,392
61,847,808 47,343,116
The average credit period is 90 days. The Group has financial TH=EHE AIOH AEEFHE 4
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables TR R E IR  LAERTE
within the credit timeframe. JER RIBIR A A o
Trade payables of approximately HK$12,294,000 (2009: BE 5D R412,294,000%8 7T (=
HK$19,621,000) and HK$964,000 (2009: HK$403,000) were T NF:19,621,0008 L) &
denominated in RMB and JPY respectively, the currencies other 964,000 T (Z T ZE N &F -
than the functional currency of the respective group entities. 403,000/ 7T) 2 B S EN B D
AAARE R AEAEN  mEH
EEAEEER EAEK-
BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE

The bank borrowings are unsecured bank import loans which
are repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period and carry at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus
spread, ranging from 2% to 2.2% (2009: 3% to 3.5%) per
annum.

All the bank borrowings were denominated in USD, the
currency other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

RITEEAEHEBERERTALDE
FoARREBRET —FANE
B RAEBRTRAERENER
ENF2%E22% (ZETNE:
3%%E3.5% ) NEETE °

FrESRITIE B AR T REN
LERE R ERIES N Y
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. EZLEBIIR
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (asset) UTERBERRBTEFEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and TERCLHREAE (BE) REE
prior years: &
Accelerated
tax Tax Intangible
depreciation losses assets Total
3R B %
wE BBEER BREE #at
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZ\FENA—A 15,970,160 (536,570) - 15,433,590
(Credit) charge to profit or loss for the year (BA)MBEAFE B  (1,785,857) 74,616 = (1,711,241)
Effect of change in tax rate PRy a2 (917,848) 27,148 = (890,700)
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNE
=EH=T=E 13,266,455 (434,806) - 12,831,649
(Credit) charge to profit or loss for the year (BA)MBEAFEEE  (1,270,823) 134,562 (284,385) (1,420,646)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR - - 2,497,420 2,497,420
At 31 March 2010 R=ZB-Z2F
=A=1+—-H 11,995,632 (300,244) 2,213,035 13,908,423

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$14,036,000 (2009:
HK$40,826,000) available to offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$1,820,000 (2009: HK$2,635,000) of the
tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$12,216,000 (2009:
HK$38,191,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Such losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

REEEBR NEETHEHER
Fom Al 2 Bt R B AR BB L
£14,036,00087C (Z T NEF -
40,826,000 7T) - AEEE 5t
B8 491,820,000 T (ZEE AN
12,635,000 7T ) 2 i 15 &5 18
TEREER TG E 2= - FR & LATEA
RIRFRE » B ELERTRE
B51812,216,0008 L (—ZZEZ 1,
F 138,191,000/ 0 ) FERE LT
BEE ZEEBEAERRALEE -
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HE—F—

30.

EET A=F+—HIFFEZE
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Par value of
each ordinary Number of
share shares Share capital
SRLBEREE RO EE R
HK$ HK$'000
BT THT
Ordinary shares EFiil
Authorised: 52% :
At 1 April 2008, 31 March RZEEZN\EMA—R
2009 and 31 March 2010 “EEAF=A=1t—HBK
—E-ZFE=fA=1—H 0.005  100,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E?é‘ﬁ&%%ﬁlﬁ'
At 1 April 2008, 31 March RZEZNEFNA—-A"
2009 and 31 March 2010 ey e il =
—T-TEZA=+-H 0.005 10,193,545,600 50,967,728
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WEEHIEB A )

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Neway Entertainment
Group”) for cash consideration of HK$65,000,000 from
Neway Enterprise Holdings Limited (“Neway Enterprise”).
The acquisition had been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting.

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, the beneficial owner of
Neway Enterprise, has grant a put option (“Put Option”) to
the Group, exercisable at any time from the completion of
this acquisition (“Completion”) and ending on the second
anniversary date of the Completion to require Dr. SUEK Chai
Kit, Christopher to buy back the entire equity interest in Neway
Entertainment Group at a consideration of HK$65,000,000
and any investment cost contributed by the Group after the
Completion. The directors considered the consideration paid of
HK$65,000,000 represents the fair value of business acquired,
accordingly, the fair value of the Put Option of approximately
HK$19,561,000 at initial recognition is considered as a
deemed contribution and hence credited to the equity.

RZZEZNFSA+AB K&
B B Neway Enterprise Holdings
Limited ([Neway Enterprise |)
U8 Neway Entertainment Limited
NEKH B AA (FHE[Neway
Entertainment®s & | ) & & i 4
B E{H7365,000,000/8 T » %A
WEEHKAEE G AARK -

BB 18 1 BNeway Enterprise

EXRBEEAN BRAAEBERT
ROnEARE ([ROLEE]) AR
ZIEWEEK ([EXR])EEHE
TR E_RBRFTEHHBREMT
IR AT BREEEA T T
K 165,000,000 7t B Bl Neway
Entertainments B & A% #E &%
EREAEBRGIRERAN -ES
PR P 2 it 2 £ 865,000,000/
TTRFIWIEES  AFE Bt
Roh B A F{E 19,561,000
TR S EREHIR B —IBRE
BERA R E MR Ao
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. WEEBMIB AT (&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill ToHMKECEEFENMTES
arising, are as follows: JEENT
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
before Fair value
combinations adjustments Fair value
RE Btar
BWET 2
BREE AFERAE AFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
&I BT BT
Net assets acquired: PRI iR & B 3E -
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRNIRS 6,509,892 = 6,509,892
Film rights = R 5,525,678 625,996 6,151,674
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E MR FIR 8,109,480 = 8,109,480
Other creditors and accruals E b S BR T S BT
KIH (2,578,559) = (2,578,559)
Tax payable AN (746,399) = (746,399)
Intangible assets in relation to H# A &4 REE
artiste contracts and Bz BREE
trademark - 14,509,880 14,509,880
Deferred tax EIEDIE = (2,497,420) (2,497,420)
16,820,092 12,638,456 29,458,548
Goodwill RS 36,025,324
65,483,872
Total consideration satisfied by: BREBATIN AR :
Cash Re 65,000,000
Directly attributable costs BEEEEKRA 483,872
65,483,872
Net cash outflow arising WEEEE ZIRE MM
on acquisition: R
Cash consideration paid BNIBEERE (65,483,872)
Bank balances and cash RITER NI S 6,509,892

(58,973,980)
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30.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Neway Entertainment
Group because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In additional, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of revenue growth and future market development.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. The Group also acquired the
customer relationships of Neway Entertainment Group as
part of the acquisition. These assets could not be separately
recognised from goodwill because they are not capable
of being separated from the Group and sold, transferred,
licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together
with any related contracts.

The fair value of the Put Option of approximately
HK$19,561,000 at initial recognition is contributed by Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher. The fair value of the Put Option
was determined at the date of grant using Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to
calculate the fair value of the Put Option:

HK$65,000,000
HK$65,000,000

Share price (Note i)
Exercise price

Expected life of options 2 years
Expected volatility

(Note ii) 54.5%
Expected dividend yield 1.49%
Risk free rate 0.704%

30.

WREHELQR (&)

HRREHKANBEESERE-
B EENeway Entertainmentss B
EEFB-MIN EHZENRK
EERPERKEERRRKT
BERNGaAEE 2B - B
ZEMNR IAFEABINERE
EZBEREG WU EEEFES
F HE 78 o 2N & B 75 2 W s Neway
Entertainment& B 2 B F B &
(ERWE—HD) BHRZEER
ETEREASE S MR ER 5E
FIEERABEEAOLE EHiE 5
EFEA - HAE A B AR
HEBDRER-

RO S R 2 AT B
#)19,561,0008 ST M B B AE 18 £
B A AFERER A
BERLRPETEEIESE
DA B3R T3 P B 8 0% B 2
AF(E:

W& (A77£i) 65,000,000 T
TR E 65,000,000 7T
TERAHAMEFHR 24
T8 B 1R

(H1azii) 54.5%
TEHIAR B K 1.49%
4 [ B I =R 0.704%
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30.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of the
share price. The changes in the subjective input assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price is HK$65,000,000, which is equal to the
purchase consideration of the acquisition.

(ii) The expected volatility of the Put Option is based on the
historical daily share price movements of a set of comparable

companies over a historical period of 2 years.

Neway Entertainment Group contributed approximately
HK$809,000 to the Group's profit for the period between the
date of acquisition and at the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2009, total
group revenue and profit for the year would have been
HK$579,139,000 and HK$57,299,000 respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
the operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2009,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

30.

WIEHE AT (&)
LHPECEEAERGADE
TEBSE DERERE 8BS
ABREHTEAYEATER
5o

Bzt -

0 1% {8 465,000,000 7T - 485 HUR
BEBEZBEAE-

(i) o Bz TR R R T)A — AR &
LR ARIBEMF SR BES AR

Neway Entertainment®s & 7 U B
HEZESRERRMEAARNEER
& B 49809,000/% T

HMZBREN _ETAFNA —
HELZEK AFESEZKZE
Now A9 7l & £579,139,0007%8 7T
157,299,000/ 7T ° 5 Z & FHE
SHEARG  WARRZIBAKER=
ZENFENMA—HELTKER
SEERUTER R REEHE
H M BRIERARRERZ 2TEM -
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31. LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. HHEXIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had NHEH KR KREBRWEZT
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- IR S E EN 2 R R
cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall THE I IEAVEN AT EAfE 2 Bf &%
due as follows: 1<t
2010 2009
—E—EF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 4,527,643 4,072,240
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZEFRFNR
(BHREREME) 7,446,802 9,126,865
Over five years HBiEAF 51,877,565 53,302,389
63,852,010 66,501,494
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the RS E TR AN E B A A
Group for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. By IMODERETIESENZ
Leases for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated He IEWELREIGFE M
for terms of 1 to 50 years. Rentals are fixed for 1 to 5 years. EHEFEAIRS0ETNE-HERN
1256 REE & e
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EREIE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but LU EE Y % « = N &
not provided in the consolidated LA Ko = 3 {56 FA #E
financial statements in respect of BRI ERELSE
acquisition of property, plant and S mRPIRRER 2
equipment and land use rights BARFZ 15,597,305 16,140,902
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33.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (“ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from
the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

33.

EBIRERGE
AEBAEEEZAETEAERE
B 17 TE B R K8 A 5 2
([ORSOET#l]) - ORSOsT &I 2 &
ERETIAZSzESEF  BEX
EBZEEDHARIE - ORSOTE|
Z TR ORSOH &8l 2 R BIFTET
B2 L EREHE - MR B R A] 2 8
SHXAE EORSOTE AEH
FEVEH 2 L3R AT AR Uk 2 3k i
B

—EETEST_A—AE K
SETER/EBRERERES MR
MREEE ([RESFE]) -
BEEEERERFELTER
RPN R ME R EE
2 - REeF B EERE
MERARGZEZSRKE  BHA%
Bz EEDFRIE - RIFBESET
g EEMHEEESARMAIFTH
2R A BB EMEL R
AEERBESAS T 2E—]
ERELREFL ZHK - BRB R
RSN BB R E R E 208
WS AT B AR D SR AR 2

o

RirE 2 EE R AR 2 ORSO
FrEINREEFTEI T 2 RIKEF
FHEMEE  ThiE AR BIRZ FATE
RAGTHACERERESEL 2
Ko
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33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in the
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal
government of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to
fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions to
the scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Apart from the amount due from a related company
as disclosed in note 24, during the year, the Group has
entered into significant transactions between related
parties and subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

33.

34,

RKBERETE (&)

ERAEEETEZAERER
ZIRRAER T E - AEBEE 208
AT BT B 2 R KR A
a8l - NEEARBRE B F K
RzX—BDHRTEER A
REMERES - BERAIZARE
1 B U AR B 3 SRR RS 2 R Fr
& MR FHIET B 2 RIREF] -
AEER & 2 E—RERR
BIEHETEBIRE (R 2B - [A1R%
ArEMEH 2 R ERIBEZFEZ
MA RS ERS 2 EWaER
AR -

R-B-FFR-_BTAF=A
=+—8 HEAEEN2ERE
BERATE B BRI -
FRUAR 7 2 B 2 SR A 3
2 RO -

BEEALRS

(@) MK FE24M B R E R —R
BRIE D A RSN - FARE
EAETFHREALTEAADF
B ARSI THIZBEER

R
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Promotion service fee income HEERBERA
(Note i) (Htazi) 8,010,000 -
Licensed fee income (Note i) LSO D) 2,465,576 =
Sales of goods (Note i) LEEm (M) 303,460 356,072
Office rental expenses (Note i) HAEHEHAZ
(Btazi) 270,000 —
Premises rental expenses (Note jij) — ¥WFEME & (f7:tii) 840,000 840,000
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions have carried out with Neway Karaoke
Box Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher.

(ii) The transactions were carried out with subsidiaries of
Neway Karaoke Box Limited.

(iii) The transaction was carried out with another related
company, a company beneficially owned by the
spouse and sons of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

3. BEALRE (&)
(@ (&)
wat -

(i) RERTEEEERE
T &&= %A 2 A AlNeway
Karaoke Box Limitedi
1T

(ii) ZEX S TIENeway
Karaoke Box Limited 2 Fff
BARE

iy BERHHRI—FHE
AR (—REEEESL
IRERATFEEEEZ
AR AT
(b) FEEEASZHRMH
AT REZREMEEETE

key management during the year was as follows: AERAFE 2B :
2010 2009
S —EThE
HK$ HK$
BT o
Short-term benefits 5 HAtE A 10,442,469 7,927,120
Post-employment benefits B 12 13 A 184,726 138,808
10,627,195 8,065,928
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERFETBRABZHME

determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

T FME B @RER AL
ZRENTGBEERE -
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35.

36.

FFEE A= —AUEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 27, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In June 2010, the Group entered a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose
film rights and prepayment on film production with a
consideration of HK$8,800,000. The carrying amount of film
rights and prepayment as at 31 March 2010 is approximately
HK$6,152,000 and HK$3,180,000 respectively. The disposal
does not have significant financial impact to the results of the
Group.

35.

36.

EXERER

AEBEREEANUERAEE
HETEERERELE RARKES
MR RONEREEDTE 8
EE A AR -

AEE 2 BEARRERER (2K
2T E 2 RITIEE  IRER
ERBESEE) RARBER AR
hEmD (BREZRTRAREE)
A o

AEEZERERBERNEAR
B EERZERBRERAKARE
RFE M 2 Bk - AEB A EBE
TR BB B A fn R # IR (R A 3K
BRRAEERFHEHEBEEEAR

SEEBRRE FFEM

b_/\ aifF/\)E] KEIEE@%_L
F= EHTiEETﬂfJ  HEF R IR
%&%%ﬁ*”f’ﬁ%ﬁﬁmlﬁ REB
8,800 ooo/%ru TR E—FTF=
A=+—8" )#H&%&%EH,TA
HZ RHEED E'JZ’JF_’,6152000
JC %3,180,000/8 T - /A H & T
EHAEBRXEENEAT B
2B o
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

37. BT 215

Effective
percentage of

Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADARBERT
BrERT/ BA,/ EfEE
WEARER R AL S A it B R A ERASL TEEHR
2010 2009
“E2-%fF —ZEINF
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(previously known as “Chung Tai
Printing (B.V.I.) Limited")
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited EERTHES 10,000/ 7 100 100 ®EEKR
(A7#8Chung Tai Printing (B.V.L.)
Limited )
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
HK$500,000
deferred non-voting
RAHRER AR B 1,000/ 7T & B 100 100 KEEK
500,000/ 7T
BREEELR
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
Co., Ltd. registered capital printing
HEARER CRIN) BRAF] i 12,000,000 7 100 100 RERAAEIR
& A
mARER (FR)BERAA The PRC HK$72,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
mAREIR (B&) BARAA i 72,000,0007% 7T 100 100 EEXS
AN
HEAER (FE)BRAH The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
HRENR (BE) ERAA i 10,000,000 7T 100 100 EEES
AMER
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective
percentage of

37. B AR 2515 (&)

Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADARBERT
Brewsm/ BA,/EfEE
WEARER R EL S it B R A ERASL TEXK
2010 2009
“2-%fF —ZEINF
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Label and offset
Limited HK$10,000 printing
deferred non-voting
RARENR (P E)BERAA BE 1,000 T EBR 100 100 RERAAEIR
10,000/ 7T
ERFERTR
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company Limited HK$1,000,000
deferred non-voting
BARAAEIRIAR DA BA 1,000 T EBR 100 100 EEXK
1,000,000/ 7T
ERFERTR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of
advertising
materials
ZMBERAT B 200,00078 7T &AM 100 100 EBEEESUH
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100  Property investment
HK$2
deferred non-voting
RAREERBRAT BE 1008 T &AM 100 100 WERE
28T
ERFERTR
Chung Tai Investment & Development Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Co. Limited (previously known as
"Gifts Source Limited")
RAREZRBRAA BA BT ERR 100 100 EEEXK

(RI%E : Gifts Source Limited )
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. B A B 2 5518 (&)

Effective
percentage of

Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADARBERT
Brewsm/ BA,/EfEE
WEARER R EL S it B R A ERASL TEXK
2010 2009
“E-2F —TTNE
Chung Tai Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
HK$2
deferred non-voting
PAEEARAA BA 10078 7T &AM 100 100 EEXK
28T
BRFEETR
Chung Tai Packaging Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Inactive
PABRERAR BA 10,0007 7 100 100 EEES
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Brilliant Wise International Limited EBRIEE B3 100 100 HEZEKR
Gain Capital International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Gain Capital International Limited HERAHS 1T ERR 100 100 HEZEK
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment in TV
series production
BEEXRERAR B BT SRR 100 100 BREERRE
RE
Neway Entertainment Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
Neway Entertainment Limited EBRIHES 1ETEER 100 - REER
Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 - Inactive
BEREBRRA B0 1AL E R 100 - BEEE
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective
percentage of

37. B AR 2515 (&)

Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADARBERT
Brewsm/ BA,/EfEx
WEARER AR ER S A i B B3] ERASL TEXK
2010 2009
“2-%F —ZEINF
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 - Provision of artists
management and
music licensing
services and sales
of music albums
ER%E (RF)BRRA £ 1BTERKR 100 - RHEBAEER
BRI MRS K
HESHER
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 - Provision of music
licensing services
and investment
holding
TRREIBRERAR B 10,0007% 7T & 3 X 100 - RESERERS
RREER
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 - Inactive
RERERAA B 10,0007% 7T & & i 100 - EBEEK
Neway Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 - Production and
distribution of
movies
HERYEHEERRR B 10,0007 70 & 3B AR 100 - BREERES
Neway Star Music Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 - Sales of music
albums
MERELAEERD BE 10,0007 7T & % 100 - HESZER
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK10,000 Ordinary 100 - Provision of artists
Limited management
services
MERERERARA B 10,0008 70 & @R 100 - RESAEERE
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. B AR 2515 (&)

Effective
percentage of

Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KDARBERT
Brewsm/ BA,/ EfEx
WEARER R ELSL Ef it B AR A ERASL TEEH
2010 2009
—E-Z5 —ZTAF
SmartMax International Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
SmartMax International Limited BERAMS 1RTEBR 100 100 H®EZEKR
Citicorp Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
BRERBRAF BA BT E B 100 100 REEK

Note: The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., R AENRI (jEiR)
BMRAE] and FERENR (OFi=) B A A are wholly foreign
owned enterprises in the PRC.

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited, Brilliant Wise
International Limited, Gain Capital International Limited,
Citicorp Development Limited and SmartMax International
Limited are directly owned by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the Company.

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Kzt HRENR CRIDBR AR HX
ENRI OB &) B R A 7 R JE X ENR
OBE)BRARTHE Z5MNEI5
Bih%x-

PIBEREBIONEB NP BT

Chung Tai Printing Holdings
Limited Brilliant Wise
International Limited~Gain Capital
International Limited - B &% R A&
R A & &2 SmartMax International
Limited B AN AR EE#EE-FTA
HMMB AR BARAMEHE
ﬁ o

BERZRELR (FRAKER
BIZHBAEE L EBRERRE
RERBRRAEBEHLERRH
RAZEABERAEHNE LR
B RNBERFZ2EERMDIK-

B B 2 ]I R AR B A A ] B )
BMEEARREREZERHES-
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M HE

RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERE —TTLFE —_TEN\F —_TTNF —ZB-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FA&TT F&T FA&T FHET
Revenue g %5 662,544 678,029 728,563 691,495 569,016
Profit (loss) before B 5 B i K
taxation (E518) 63,969 40,761 41,184 (16,016) 63,166
Taxation g (6,512) (6,268) (2,164) (1,920) (2,953)
Profit (loss) for the year REE R
(E518) 57,457 34,493 39,020 (17,936) 60,213
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
At 31 March
R=BA=+—8H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERE —ZTTLFE —_TENF —_TTNF —ZB-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FA&T FA&T FA&T FHBT
Total assets BEAE 646,424 658,326 1,015,703 817,001 896,267
Total liabilities BERE 92,383 86,988 236,577 62,511 87,562
Total equity ISR 554,041 571,338 779,126 754,490 808,705
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Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,
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